
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 
 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. Three-Month Update on Parking Enforcement for Goldsboro Downtown (Downtown Development

& Parking Consultant, Dwight Bassett)
b. Goldsboro’s Water Treatment Project to Address PFAS (Public Utilities /CDM Smith)

4. NEW BUSINESS
c. Stormwater Inventory (Engineering)
d. Musgrave Manor Subdivision Storm Drainage Improvements (Engineering)
e. Change Order #1 for Metal Maintenance Shed Building at Bryan MSCX (Parks & Recreation)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Fire Chaplin)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A1. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of August 19, 2024
A2. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of September 3, 2024

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Ralph “Trey” Ball, III as an Employee 

of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 28 Years  

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
C. City of Goldsboro: Amend the City of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances, Chapter 90: Abandoned and Junked

Vehicles (Planning) – Information Not Available  - Continued to October 7, 2024 Council Meeting
D. SU-15-24 Henry Lee Battle Jr. - East side of S. James Street between Spruce Street and Pine Street (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
E. Operating Budget Amendment FY24-25 (Finance)
F. Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
G. 2024 Halloween Festival – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
H. Memorandum of Agreement between the Goldsboro Police Department and NC DHHS and Cherry

Hospital (Police) 
I. Approval of the FY25-26 Budget Calendar (CM Office)
J. Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina (Clerk)
K. Departmental Monthly Reports

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION
L. Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Arrington Bridge Road Water Reclamation Facility

Expansion Project FY27 (S1112) (Finance) 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XII. CLOSED SESSION

XIII. ADJOURN

F &G 
Moved to 
Ind Action



w.s. a





Goldsboro, NC
September 16, 2024

Parking Management





Retail Parking Management





Curb Management



A. Utilize a Limited Resource Efficiently
B. Use Parking As A Tool to Support and Enhance Economic Activity
C. Create Order and Reduce Anxiety
D. Leverage Parking as a Tool to Encourage Transportation Options
E. Maximize and/or Manage Parking Turnover
F. Get The Right People In The Right Parking Space

Parking goals:



https://www.greshamoregon.gov/globalassets/city-departments/urban-design-and-planning/transportation-
planning/parking-management-manual/2024-08-08-the-fundamentals-of-downtown-parking-management.pdf



Parking Management Economics



Parking is one of the most visible, controversial and often underestimated 
elements of a downtown environment’s infrastructure. A well-managed 

parking system is vital to attracting and supporting new development and 
is essential to sustaining healthy and vibrant Downtowns.

- Carl Walker

““



• Downtown parking must support economic vitality
• Parking needs to be managed between public and private 

interests
    (Private = business concern, Public = common good of downtown) 

• When occupancy is 80+%, new strategies for spaces or parking 
management need to be addressed

Downtown Parking Management



Regional wholesale 
type big box
(Costco, BJ’s, or Sam’s)

Big box general 
merchandise
(Walmart, Target)

Small businesses
(2+ years in business)

Retail Sales Range per year and per square foot



 The managed parking area has 597,000 SF of business spaces.

 If each business were able to achieve $150 per square foot in sales.

 There would be a taxable value of $89,500,000

 At 6.75 percent sales tax rate

 That section of downtown has the potential to yield $6,000,000 in 
taxes for state, county and city coffers

Economic Value – 
Downtown Goldsboro 



https://www.greshamoregon.gov/globalassets/city-departments/urban-design-and-planning/transportation-
planning/parking-management-manual/2024-08-08-the-fundamentals-of-downtown-parking-management.pdf



Percentage of managed parking spaces

5% 10%

Percent of Public parking
1929 parking spaces

186 parking spaces

Percent of total parking
3595 parking spaces



46% of 
downtown 
parking is 
unoccupied 
from 11am – 
4pm

Updated Total Parking Occupancy by Time of Day –
On-Street Parking



Public Forum – January 2023



To consider options in creating a better 
parking system that supports business 

and growth downtown.









Key points of downtown parking

1) Parking Management is critical for downtown areas with strong 
demand.

2) There are real economic issues if parking is not managed well.

3) You are managing a very small portion of available parking.

4) You have completed a Parking Study, held a public forum, and begun 
a incremental journey of managing parking.

5) Utilizing national best-practices, you have begun to manage parking 
for the good of all businesses.



Questions?



September 5, 2024

Parking Utilization Photos



11am - 100 Block of S Center 1pm - 100 Block of S Center 4pm - 100 Block of S Center 

11am – Waynesborough Parking Lot 1pm – Waynesborough Parking Lot 4pm – Waynesborough Parking Lot

9/5/24 9/5/24 9/5/24

9/5/24 9/5/24 9/5/24



Waynesborough Lot (Across from Paramount)

2023 - 48% Full2024 - 70% Full



11am - 100 Block of N Center 1pm - 100 Block of N Center 4pm - 100 Block of N Center 

11am – John Street Parking Lot 1pm – John Street Parking Lot 4pm – John Street Parking Lot

9/5/24 9/5/24 9/5/24

9/5/24 9/5/24 9/5/24



2024 - 85% Full

John Street Lot – 1pm (Center to John, Near Mulberry)

2023 - 38% Full



11am - 200 Block of N Center 1pm - 200 Block of N Center 4pm - 200 Block of N Center 

11am – City Hall Parking Lots 1pm – City Hall Parking Lots 4pm – City Hall Parking Lots

9/5/24 9/5/24 9/5/24

9/5/24 9/5/24 9/5/24



2023 -  85% Full

City Hall Lots

2024 - 94% Full



Waynesborough Lot
(Across from Paramount)

2023 - 48% Full
2024 - 70% Full

John Street Lot
(Center to John, Near Mulberry)

2023 - 38% Full
2024 - 85% Full

City Hall Lots
2023 -  85% Full
2024 - 94% Full

Public Off-Street Use 2023 vs. 2024

2023 2023 2023

2024 2024 2024



100 Block of E. Mulberry – Avg. Use: 15% 100 Block of W. Mulberry – Avg. Use: 53%  

100 Block of E. Walnut – Avg. Use: 42% 100 Block of W. Walnut – Avg. Use: 70%

9/5/24 9/5/24

9/5/24 9/5/24



Parking Time Extension Permit (PTEP) personal survey

1. Business name and address

44
Responses

Latest Responses
"Brisas Latin Cuisine"

"Bicycle World "

"Thai Garden Cuisine"

2. Interviewee name and position

43
Responses

Latest Responses
"Dumas Brea Owner "

"Yes"

"Robert Griffin or Janet Pun"

3. How many of your typical customers stay inside your business for more than 2
consecutive hours ?

4. What are your two busiest periods for any given day?

5. How often have you received complaints from your customers about 2-hour parking?

44
Responses

01:48
Average time to complete

Active
Status

Less than 25% 23

25% 11

50% 5

75% or more 5

8 am till 11 am 9

11 am till 1 pm 20

1 pm till 3 pm 20

3 pm till 6 pm 21

6 pm till closing 10

Never 16

Once or twice per month 7

Once or twice per week 8

Daily 13



6. The City offers the option for businesses in restricted parking areas to apply for up to 5 placards for customers
use only. How many permits would you foresee needing?

7. Generally speaking, how has the new parking management plan effected your business results?

none 19

2 6

3 4

5 14

No significant effect 18

Somewhat positive effect 6

Significant positive effect 4

Somewhat negative effect 10

Significant negative effect 6



0 0.080.04
Mi

±
Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

2024
Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors,
Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its affiliates, Esri Community Maps
contributors, Map layer by Esri, City of  Goldsboro, Esri, TomTom, Garmin,
SafeGraph, FAO, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USFWS

Downtown Parking Tickets -
June, July, and August

62

1

54

60

16

8

4

4 12

10

8

7

1

42241

3474
2

2

5



Goldsboro’s Water Treatment
Project  to Address PFAS: 
September 2024

Reed Barton, PE, DBIA Assoc.
Bil l  Dowbiggin, PE, BCEE, PMP

w.s. item b



Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl  Substances (PFAS)
Exposure Pathways: “The Forever Chemicals”

2



Maximum Contaminant  Levels (MCLs)

3

▬ Maximum Contaminant  Level (MCL) of 4.0 ng/ L (or ppt) for PFOA or PFOS [remained 
the same]

▬ Hazard Index (HI) of 1 (unitless) for PFNA, PFHxS, PFBS & GenX (also HFPO-DA) [NOT 
1.0 per draft  rule]

‐ “For any mixture containing two or more” – cannot violate if only one is present [NEW]

▬ NEW MCLs 10 ng/ L for PFNA, PFHxS & GenX



A Complex Regulatory Landscape for PFAS

4



5

▬ Compl iance required in 5 years (2029) based on Running Annual  Average (RAA)

▬ Within 3-years of rule promulgat ion (2027)

‐ Init ial  monitoring must be complete

▬ Start ing 3-years fol lowing the rule promulgat ion (20217-2029)

‐ Results of init ial  monitoring must be included in Consumer Confidence Reports (CCR)

‐ Regular monitoring for compl iance must begin, and resul ts of compl iance monitoring must be included 
in CCR

‐ Publ ic not if icat ion for monitoring and test ing violat ions

▬ Start ing 5-years fol lowing rule promulgat ion (April  2029)

‐ Comply with al l  MCLs

‐ Publ ic not if icat ion for MCL violat ions

Timeframes for Water Systems to Implement the new EPA 
Regulat ion



6

NC DEQ PFAS Sampl ing Statewide



Roadmap to complying with EPA’s new PFAS Regulation?

 Investigate sources of PFAS
 Evaluate treatment alternatives
 Pilot Testing and comparison of options
 Select a Treatment Strategy

 Design and Construction of Capital 
Improvements for the WTP

 Keep the public informed

Developing and 
Implementing
a PFAS compliance 
strategy

7



Potent ial  for funding assistance 
from State and Federal  Agencies

8

▬ Federal funding for PFAS has been 
given to NCDEQ (DWI)
‐ Study grants ($500K / FY)

‐ Capital Projects ($5M /  FY) 

▬ NC Legislative Appropriations

▬ Federal Appropriations



QUESTIONS

9

Reed Barton, PE, Assoc. DBIA
Vice President
CDM Smith



Stormwater Inventory Project

Engineering

9/16/2024

9/16/2024 1

w.s. item c



Project Objectives

• Improved Infrastructure Management: Knowing the exact condition and location of 
stormwater assets (such as pipes, drains, and retention ponds) allows the City of 
Goldsboro to manage these assets more effectively. This helps in prioritizing 
maintenance and repairs based on actual conditions rather than estimates.

• Enhanced Flood Risk Management: Accurate data on stormwater infrastructure 
helps in understanding and managing flood risks. By assessing the condition of 
assets, the City of Goldsboro can identify weaknesses and address them to prevent 
flooding during heavy rain events.

• Long-Term Cost Savings: Proactive maintenance and timely repairs identified 
through assessments can prevent more costly emergency repairs and replacements 
in the future. This can lead to significant cost savings over time.

9/16/2024 2



Project Schedule
• Task 1 – GIS Development Preparation

– Development of a geodatabase for data collection
– Review of existing GIS data and print maps

• Task 2 – Mapping, Inventory, and Assessment
– Comprehensive field survey of stormwater assets
– Condition assessment of assets

• Task 3 – GIS Database Development and Implementation
– Configuration of ArcGIS Stormwater Utility Network database
– Implementation of data into Goldsboro’s databases
– Design and configuration of applications and dashboards

9/16/2024 3



Former Stormwater Network

9/16/2024 4

• Minimal attribute information
• Retention ponds and ditches not mapped
• No tracing or modelling capabilities



New Stormwater Network

9/16/2024 5

• Newly mapped features 
(retention ponds, ditches, and 
more)

• Future tracing and 
modelling capabilities

• Better feature accuracy
• Photograph 

attachments on 
manholes and inlets

• Comprehensive 
attribute information 
(i.e. measurements, 
interior materials, etc.)



Statistics and Conclusions
• Number of mapped pipe miles (public and private) increased by 37.5% 

– (Over 1 million feet or 205 miles of pipe total)

• Number of inlets mapped increased by 29%
• Number of manholes mapped increased by 29%

• This project has provided the City of Goldsboro with a comprehensive stormwater database which will 
provide a solid base for stormwater asset management.

• Field surveys and condition assessments have given us insights into the status of these assets for 
better maintenance decision making.

• Configured and integrated the Stormwater ArcGIS Utility Network which solidifies data integrity and 
allows for more advanced analysis, visualization, and data management.

9/16/2024 6



w.s. d





w.s. e



1 of 16 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 19, 2024 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina met in a Work Session in the Large 
Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina at 5:00 p.m. on August 19, 
2024. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to adopt the agenda as presented. The motion 
was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.  Council adopted the agenda.  

Old Business. 
Work Session Item a.  Review of Management Advisory Group (MAG) Proposal. Kelly Arnold, Interim Assistant 

City Manager presented information regarding the Organizational Study.  

Management Advisory Group (MAG) presented their Compensations & Classification Study to the Mayor and Council at 
the Council work session on August 5, 2024.  

During presentation, MAG also proposed an Organization and Management Structure Review study for $45,000.  This 
Phase II study was not contemplated during the budget process, but as the review of Compensation and Classification 
Study discussions evolved, the Structure Review took shape as an important analysis that could take place during the 
Compensation and Classification Study.   

There has not been a comprehensive review of the organizational structure for several years and the current organizational 
structure has evolved over time.   

The study will include a Comparative Analysis of the Organizational Structure and Staffing in the various divisions and 
departments within the City. 

The review will include: 
• Identifying the current organizational structure and staffing levels in the City, including an overall examination of

allocated functions and responsibilities handled within each office division/department under review. Data will be 
provided in full-time equivalents by division/department. 

• Identification and comparative analysis of staffing levels for site-level staffing from the various departments. Site-
level staffing data will be provided in total FTE’s. 

• Collection of the organizational structure and staffing data from four to six comparable cities.
• Detailed implementation suggestions that may include changes in the organizational structure and/or staffing.
• The final review will be presented to the City Council.

Staff recommends Council approve the Organizational Review and for the Finance Director to present a budget 
amendment ordinance for the September 5, 2024 meeting on the Consent Agenda which allocates funds for the study. 

Councilman White asked Council if they decide to spend the $45,000, are they prepared to implement the process within 
three years. Mayor Gaylor shared if we aren’t committed to making the adjustments, now may not be the right time.  

Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the Organizational Review and for a budget amendment ordinance to be 
prepared for the next Council meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.   

Item A1



2 of 16 
 

Work Session Item b.  Community Supporting Schools Funding Support. Mayor Gaylor shared this came 
before us at a previous Council meeting and when looking at the video of the meeting, it was unclear of what was 
requested. The request was a $30,000 allotment out of the general fund to fund a mentorship position at North Drive 
Elementary School.  

 
Ms. Selena Bennett with Community Supporting Schools shared a presentation regarding the mentorship program at the 
Council meeting on July 15, 2024.   
 
Ms. Bennett requested $30,000 for a mentor position at North Drive Elementary School. The funds will cover the cost for 
the position, the supplies, and other necessary tools needed to start the program. 
 
Mayor Gaylor has requested Council formally vote to approve the expenditure from the General Fund. If approved, the 
finance director will bring a budget ordinance to the next meeting to allocate the funds. 
 
Council discussed the recommendation.  
 
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to take $30,000 out of the NPO allotment in the current budget. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.  
 
Council discussed having a future discussion regarding the remaining NPO allotment of $20,000.  
 

Appointed Committee Report.  
Work session Item c. Commission on Community Relations and Development. Carole Battle, Chair provided 

an update on the commission attached as Exhibit A. 
 

Work session Item d. Historic District Commission. Fritz Knack, Chair of the Historic District Commission 
provided an update on the commission attached as Exhibit B. 
 

New Business. 
Work Session Item e. Friends of Seymour Presentation. Ken Gerrard shared the presentation attached as 

Exhibit C. Council discussed the presentation.  
 

Work Session Item f. Chamber of Commerce Presentation. Scott Satterfield, President of the Wayne County 
Chamber of Commerce shared the presentation attached as Exhibit D. Mr. Satterfield shared that city employees are 
included as members due to the city’s membership. 

 
Mayor Gaylor shared he is an ex-officio member of the Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors and due to 

state law, needs to recuse himself from voting.  
 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to allow Mayor Gaylor to recuse himself from any voting. The motion was 

seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously approved.  
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the $15,000 allocated for the Chamber of Commerce in the 

current budget and for a budget ordinance to be presented at the next meeting. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved. 
 

Work Session Item g. Update on Wastewater Treatment Plan Design/Build Process. Matt Livingston, Interim 
City Manager and Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director shared information regarding the presentation. Chris Robards, 
Project Manager with Crowder shared the presentation attached as Exhibit E. 

 
Councilman White shared comments regarding the presentation.   

 
Work Session Item h. Tobacco, Vapor, and CBD Sales Ordinance Amendment. The item was presented by 

Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 
 
City Council has expressed interest in considering alternative methods for the regulation of land uses that involve the sale 
of tobacco, vapor, and CBD products. Planning staff is prepared to hear City Council’s concerns and try to address any 
concerns City Council may have prior to setting the date of the public hearing.   
 
Planning staff seeks input from the Mayor and Council on the proposed ordinance.   
 
Mr. Helmer shared he took an inventory of existing tobacco, vape and CBD outlets within the city and found 24 of them.   
He shared information regarding the current locations of the businesses, other city’s regulations and regulations and uses 
for tobacco, vape and CBD stores.  
  
Interim City Manager Livingston shared what Mr. Helmer is asking is does Council want to restrict in the table of 
permitted uses to something like the heavy industrial district or do you want to put up distance standards.  
 



3 of 16 
 

Mayor Gaylor asked Council to provide guidance to the planning director on how restrictive we are trying to be.  
 
Council discussed the different uses, limiting the use by distance, and limiting the use near churches and schools.  
 
 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:56 p.m. 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on August 19, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Archbishop Anthony Slater provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 
 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 
New Business was continued from the Work Session.  
Work Session Item h. Tobacco, Vapor, and CBD Sales Ordinance Amendment. The item was presented by 

Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 
 
City Council has expressed interest in considering alternative methods for the regulation of land uses that involve the sale 
of tobacco, vapor, and CBD products. Planning staff is prepared to hear City Council’s concerns and try to address any 
concerns City Council may have prior to setting the date of the public hearing.   
 
Planning staff seeks input from the Mayor and Council on the proposed ordinance.   
 
Council discussed the proposed ordinance. 
  

Work Session Item i. Amending the Code of Ordinances Chapter 90: Abandoned and Junked Vehicles. The 
item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 
 
The Planning Department has developed a new Abandoned and Junked Vehicles Ordinance. The Planning Director shared 
the proposed changes with the Mayor and Council and addressed any concerns City Council may have.   
 
Planning staff seeks input from the Mayor and Council on the proposed ordinance amendments.   
 
Mr. Helmer shared there is a new definition section in the proposed ordinance amendment.  
 
Mayor Gaylor thanked Mr. Helmer and the Planning Department for their work on the ordinance amendment. Councilman 
White asked Mr. Helmer for clarification on junked vehicles.  
 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 
Regular Meeting of July 15, 2024 and the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of August 5, 2024.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.   

 
Presentations. 
Item B.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Bill Dauphinais as an Employee of the 

City of Goldsboro for More Than 27 Years. Resolution Adopted.  
 
Bill Dauphinais retires on September 1, 2024 as a Water Meter Reader with more than 27 years of service with the 
Finance Department. Bill began his career on November 25, 1996 as a Water Meter Reader with the Finance Department 
where he has served until his retirement. Bill has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City 



4 of 16 
 

Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro, of expressing to Bill Dauphinais their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the 
City over the years and express to Bill Dauphinais our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good 
health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and 
effect from and after this 19th day of August, 2024. 

 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve and adopt the ordinance to approve with the inclusion of the 

consistency statement. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-88 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY  
BILL DAUPHINAIS AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 27 YEARS” 

 
Public Hearings.  
Item C. Z-5-24 Pope Family Investments, LLC (Neighborhood Business to Neighborhood Business 

Conditional Zoning) – Located on the southwest side of the intersection of West New Hope Road and Cuyler Best 
Road. Public Hearing Held and Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 

 
ADDRESS:  704 W. New Hope Rd. 
PARCEL #: 3610-81-4358 
OWNER:  Pope Family Investments, LLC. 
APPLICANT: Pope Family Investments, LLC. 
 

The applicant requests a change of zone from the Neighborhood Business Zoning District to the Neighborhood 
Conditional Zoning District to construct and operate a convenience store with fuel sales at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of W. New Hope Road and Cuyler Best Road. The Neighborhood Business Zoning District was established to 
provide the services and commercial development needed to serve primarily the adjoining neighborhoods. The district is 
intended to promote the development of small pedestrian-oriented establishments whose character and use is compatible 
with nearby residential neighborhoods. The maximum building gross area is twenty-four thousand square feet.   

 
Area: 2.43 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:                

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

The property is identified as within Mixed Use-I land use category. This land use category will allow for a mixture of the 
following zoning districts: City of Goldsboro - O-R, O&I-1, O&I-2, NB (refer to previous district descriptions) and 
Wayne County - Village district. This category will have minimum impact on adjacent areas. This land use serves a 
localized area. The preferred land use mix is 40% or greater noncommercial zoning with both vertical and horizontal 
mixed-use allowed. It will generate lower traffic volumes than the Mixed-Use II category.  Although the requested use of 
convenience store with fuel sales is not a mixed-use project, it does provide needed services and can be considered 
beneficial to the citizens of nearby residential developments.  

 
The applicant is requesting a change of zone for the subject property from Neighborhood Business (NB) Zoning District 
to Neighborhood Residential Conditional Zoning (NB-CZ) District to construct and operate a convenience store with fuel 
sales. 
 
Per NCGS 160D-102, a conditional zoning request is a legislative zoning map amendment with site-specific conditions 
incorporated into the zoning map amendment.  

 
If a petition for conditional zoning is approved, the development and use of the property shall be governed by the 
ordinance requirements of the parallel Neighborhood Business Conditional Zoning (NB-CZ) District except those 
superseded by specific conditions, the approved concept plan, and any additional approved rules, regulations, and 
conditions, all of which shall constitute the zoning regulations for the approved district, and are binding on the property as 
an amendment to these regulations and to the Official Zoning Map.  Should the applicant deviate from the minimum 
requirements of the proposed Neighborhood Business Conditional Zoning (NB-CZ) District, the deviations shall be 
identified on the concept plan for Council approval. 

 
Access:  Access to the site will be directly from Cuyler Best Rd. (NCSR 1565) and W. New Hope Rd.  (NCSR 1003).  
NCDOT will require a left and right turn lane for Cuyler Best Rd. access and a right turn lane shall be required for W. 
New Hope Rd. 

Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

North  R-6 Vacant Farmland 

South R-12 Vacant Farmland 

East R-12SF Vacant Farmland 

West NB Vacant & Single-Family Dwellings 



5 of 16 
 

 
Left and right turn lane from Cuyler Best Rd.    Right turn lane from W. New Hope Rd. 

      
 

From Cuyler Best Rd., Shannon Ave. will be abandoned as a public right of way and will be designated as a privately 
owned shared access drive for the convenience store and future development directly west of the site. 
 
Abandoned public right-of-way: 

 

  
 

Buildings and lot:  The applicant is proposing a convenient store consisting of 5,620 sq. ft. Two fuel islands will be 
provided. Overhead canopies will provide shelter for six (6) gasoline fuel pumps and two (2) diesel pumps. 

 
 Days/hours of operation:  24 hours/7 days a week 
 Employees:  4 per shift 
  

Parking:  Parking for the site requires 1 space per 200 sq. ft. of gross floor area.  A total of 29 spaces are required and 29 
have been provided on the site plan.  Curb and gutter have been proposed for the entire site to include all vehicular surface 
areas and landscape islands. 

  
Sidewalks:  External and internal sidewalks have been provided for the site. The applicant is providing public sidewalks 
along Cuyler Best Rd.  An existing multi-use path provides pedestrian access along W. New Hope Rd.  The applicant will 
be providing a painted 8 ft. wide pedestrian crosswalk within the proposed access drive along W. New Hope Rd.  Lastly, 
internal sidewalks have been provided from the public right of way to pedestrian facilities such as seating for outside 
dining and bicycle racks offering parking for multiple bikes and access to the convenience store. 

 
External/internal sidewalks and pedestrian facilities: 

 
 

Commercial Lighting Plan:  The applicant has submitted a commercial lighting plan.  Staff will ensure that the lighting 
plan is compliant with the City’s Unified Development Ordinance before site plan approval has been issued. 

 
Interconnectivity: Interconnectivity has been identified for the site along the southern property boundary adjacent to W. 
New Hope Rd. 

    



6 of 16 
 

Engineering:  City water and sewer are available to serve the site off W. New Hope Rd. The property is not located in a 
Special Flood Hazard Area.   

 
City Engineering will require approval of stormwater calculations and drainage plans prior to issuance of any building 
permits.    

 
A proposed regional stormwater pond is required and has been identified for the site.  It will be accessed by a 20 ft. utility 
easement granted to the City of Goldsboro for inspection purposes by Engineering staff. 

 
Stormwater pond: 

 
 

Landscaping:  The applicant has contracted with a landscape architect to provide a landscape plan that meets and exceeds 
the City’s landscape ordinance.   

 
Thirty-six (36) understory trees, eighteen (18) shade trees and two-hundred, twenty-nine small shrubs have been provided 
within over-sized street yards along Cuyler Best Rd. and W. New Hope Rd.  
 

Cuyler Best Road Street Tree Yard: 
 

 
       

Two (2) Type B, 15 ft. wide buffer yards have been provided along the southwest and southeast property lines. 
 

Foundation plantings are encouraged, however, not required. The applicant has provided an assortment of understory trees 
and a variety of shrubs surrounding the store, enhancing curb appeal and providing an aesthetically pleasing site. 

 
Foundation plantings: 
 

    
 

Refuse:  Commercial dumpsters Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection at the rear of the facility 
and screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   

 
Building Elevations:  Building elevations have been submitted by the applicant. Staff are satisfied that the proposed 
facility will meet the building design standards per the requirements of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance.    

 



7 of 16 
 

  
 

TRC REVIEW: If approved, the development proposal will require site plan approval before improvements can be 
authorized for the site.   

 
Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request since the proposed zoning and land use are 
compatible with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Land Use Plan Map.  In addition, the City of Goldsboro will be 
able to provide sufficient public safety and meet transportation and utility demands for the subject property while 
maintaining sufficient levels of service to existing developments.  Staff believes that the proposed rezoning will not 
impair or injure the health, safety and general welfare of the public.  Lastly, the proposed zoning and land use request will 
provide needed services and can be considered beneficial for the citizens of nearby residential developments.  

    
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on July 29, 2024, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
conditional rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 2 against. 

 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and Consistency Statement that the Planning Commission 
has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, or Council shall 
vote to deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency Statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent.  
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

 
Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. The following people spoke: 
 
1. Hamilton Ramos shared information regarding the proposed zoning and shared the presentation attached as 

Exhibit F. 
2. Lomax Mazelle spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
3. June Bynum spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
4. Yoland Farmer spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
5. Nicole Loftin spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
 

Councilwoman Jones stepped out of the room at 8:27 p.m. and returned at 8:28 p.m. 
 
6. Amanda Unruh spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
7. Carl Martin spoke in opposition of the rezoning and shared the documents attached as Exhibit G.   
8. Shirley Salt spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
9. Allison Thomas spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
10. Janelle Reed spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
11. Richard Taylor spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
12. David Craig spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
13. Cory Taylor with Bunn-Brantley Enterprises, spoke in favor of the rezoning and shared the photo attached as 

Exhibit H.   
14. Judson Pope, representing Pope Family Investments, spoke in favor of the rezoning. 
15. Terry Gainer spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
16. Chris Cox with Cox Properties spoke in favor of the rezoning. 

 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting for a break at 9:12 p.m. The meeting resumed at 9:20 p.m.  

 
17. Trey Taylor with Warren, Kerr, Walston and Smith spoke in favor of the rezoning.   
18. Carolyn Woodley-Horne spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
19. Anita Poland spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
20. David Bourgeois spoke in opposition of the rezoning.   
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 

Council discussed turn lanes, proposed uses, conditions on the developer regarding pedestrian crosswalk lights, and water 
pressure issues in the neighborhood.  

 
Jeffrey Kornegay, Site Engineer shared it is their intention to put in the pedestrian crosswalk signals if approved by 
NCDOT. He also shared information about the water pull on the system.  

 



8 of 16 
 

Mayor Gaylor asked Mr. Helmer, based on concerns shared during the public hearing, what paper the public hearing was 
advertised in and when it was advertised. Mr. Helmer shared it was advertised in the News-Argus on August 8 and August 
15.  

 
Councilman Boyette asked about the requirements to send notice to adjoining property owners. Mr. Helmer shared notice 
was sent by first class mail to adjacent property owners and property owners within 250 feet.  

 
Council discussed the proposed zoning request and shared concerns regarding the lack of development in District 4.  

 
Councilman White made a motion to reject the zoning application as presented. The motion was seconded by 

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews and Councilman White voted for the motion. Mayor Gaylor, 
Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette, Councilwoman Taylor and Councilwoman Weeks voted against the motion. 
The motion failed 2:5.  

 
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that Council has considered among other factors the size of the track in 

question, the compatibility of the disputed zoning action within with an existing comprehensive zoning plan, the benefits 
and detriments resulting from the zoning action for the owner of the newly zoned property, its neighbors and the 
surrounding community and the relationship between the uses envisioned under the new zoning, and the uses currently 
present in adjacent tracks. The Council is able to adopt the ordinance to approve with the inclusion of the consistency 
statement. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette. Mayor Gaylor, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette, 
Councilwoman Taylor and Councilwoman Weeks voted for the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews and Councilman 
White voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:2.  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-39 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Item D.   Z-6-24 Diane Smith (RA-20 to RM-9) Residential Agricultural to Residential-Manufactured- 

Located on the west side of N. US 13 Hwy. between Hood Swamp Rd. and G and K Farm Rd. Public Hearing Held 
and Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Assistant Planning Director. 

 
ADDRESS: (TBD) 
PARCEL #: 3620-75-5191 
PROPERTY OWNER: Diane Lanaville Smith 
APPLICANT: Diane Lanaville Smith  
 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential-Agricultural Zoning District (RA-20) to the Residential-
Manufactured (RM-9) Zoning District. The purpose of the Residential-Manufactured (RM-9) Zoning District is to provide 
property owners the opportunity to place manufactured housing on individual lots. The minimum lot area for individual 
units is nine thousand square feet. 
 
Access: Existing 60 ft. wide ingress, egress and regress access easement off US 13N.  
 
Area: Approx. 70,436 sq. ft. or 1.617 acres                

 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 

 
North: Residential (R-20A) 
South: Residential-Manufactured (RM-9) 
East:  Residential (R-20A) 
West: Residential-Manufactured (RM-9)/Residential (R-20A) 

 
Existing Use:  The property is currently vacant. 
 
Land Use Plan:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Rural Residential-Agricultural and Low-Density 
Residential land-use designations.  The Residential-Manufactured (RM-9) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning 
district in these land-use designations. 

 
This is a rezoning proposal for approximately 1.6 acres to be rezoned from Residential (R-20A) Zoning District to the 
Residential (RM-9) Zoning District. As such, all permitted uses in the Residential-Manufactured (RM-9) Zoning District 
shall be considered as potential uses for the site. 
 
The subject property is located directly north of and adjacent to Peele Country Acres, a private mobile home community.  
Uses near the subject property are primarily residential in nature consisting of stick-built and manufactured homes. 
 
County water is available to serve the property.  The site has been evaluated for an on-site sewer disposal system (septic 
tank).  The applicant will be responsible for the installation of the on-site private sewer disposal system in accordance 
with the standards of the Wayne County Environmental Health Department.  

 



9 of 16 
 

The TRC is not required to review straight rezoning since a site-specific development plan is not part of this rezoning 
application. 

 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request.  Although the proposed land use plan designates the future land 
use as Rural Residential-Agricultural and Low-Density designations, the proposed rezoning and the range of uses 
permitted in the requested zoning district are compatible with the surrounding zoning patterns and land uses.  The 
proposed rezoning will not impair or injure the health, safety and general welfare of the public. 

 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 24, 2024, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
rezoning request.  Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 0 against. 
 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and Consistency Statement that the Planning Commission 
has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, or Council shall 
vote to deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency Statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent.  
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

 
Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. The following person spoke:  
 
1. Chris Cox spoke in favor of the rezoning.  
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve and adopt the ordinance to approve with the inclusion of the 

consistency statement. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously carried. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-40 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Item E. Z-7-24 Nolan Commercial Contractors (Residential 16 to Residential 9SF) Located on the south side 

of US 70 Hwy W. between Carolina Circle and Brentwood Drive. Public Hearing Held and Ordinance Adopted. The 
item was presented by Kenny Talton, Assistant Planning Director. 

 
PARCEL #: 2680-83-2550 
OWNER:  Nolan Commercial Contractors 
APPLICANT: Thomas Engineering, P.A. 
 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential 16 Zoning District to the Residential 9SF (Single-Family) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the Residential 9 SF (Single-Family) Zoning District is to accommodate medium density, 
single-family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature, except certain home occupations. The 
minimum lot size is nine thousand square feet.  

 
Area: Approximately 49.67 acres 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING:    

North: Residential 16 
South: Office and Institutional (O&I-II) 
East: Residential 16 
West: Residential 16  
 

Existing Use:  The properties are currently vacant. 
 

Land Use Plan:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Medium-Density Residential designation. The 
Residential 9SF (Single-Family) Zoning District is identified as a corresponding district for the Medium-Density 
Residential land use designation.  

 
This is a rezoning proposal to establish a single-family residential subdivision.  Adjacent uses include two residential 
subdivisions west and east of the subject property and O’Berry Neuro-Medical Center directly south of the subject 
property. 

  
The property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and NCDOT. If 
approved, the development proposal will require preliminary subdivision plat approval and site plan approval before 
improvements can be authorized for the site.  The City’s TRC (Technical Review Committee) will review the site for 
compliance with the City’s Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact that this proposal would aid in satisfying the 
growing demand for housing in the City of Goldsboro. In addition, the proposed rezoning is compatible with the City’s 



10 of 16 
 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Land Use Plan Map.  Lastly, since the subject property is accessible to public water 
and sewer utilities, the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan encourages higher residential densities in these areas. 

 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 24, 2024, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
conditional rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 0 against. 

 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and Consistency Statement that the Planning Commission 
has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, or Council shall 
vote to deny with the inclusion of the Inconsistency Statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent.  
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

 
Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. The following people spoke:  
 
1. Gerald Wagner asked questions about the local cemetery, drainage and traffic.  
2. John Parrish spoke in opposition of the rezoning. 
3. Pam Barbie spoke in opposition of the rezoning.  
4. Johns Thomas spoke in favor of the rezoning.  
5. Eric Remington with Ward and Smith Law Firm spoke in favor of the rezoning and shared information with 

Council attached as Exhibit I.  
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 

Council discussed the location and access of the local cemetery.  
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve and adopt the ordinance to approve with the inclusion of the 

consistency statement. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks. Mayor Gaylor, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, 
Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette, Councilwoman Taylor, and Councilwoman Weeks voted for the motion. 
Councilman White did not vote, however, pursuant to G.S. 160A-75, his vote would be considered an affirmative vote. 
The motion passed 7:0. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-41 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following person spoke:  

1. Carl Martin spoke about the multi-use trail on New Hope Road and provided his comments attached as Exhibit J. 
(Full comments are available on YouTube at 5:53.) 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. Interim City Manager Livingston presented the Consent Agenda.  

All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call 
vote. Councilwoman Weeks moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items F – O be approved. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Item F.  Operating Budget Amendment FY24-25. Ordinance Adopted. The item was submitted by Catherine 
Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
Council adopted the FY24-25 annual operating budget on June 17, 2024. 
  
Purchase Order Rollover  
Included in the attached ordinance amending the annual operating budget for fiscal year 2025 are the appropriations 
necessary to re-establish encumbrances for the individual outstanding purchase orders as of June 30, 2024 that will be 
honored in the new fiscal year (FY25).  Also provided is a purchase order rollover listing by fund and includes a brief 
description of the items/services.  Departments must submit rollover requests in mid-July after submitting final invoices 
for June 30 to allow Finance a chance to clear out prior year bill payments.  All rollover requests were considered on a 
case by case basis, due to concerns about use of fund balance. An analysis of fund balance appropriated is also attached. 
 
Items/services on the list represent construction contracts or service contracts that require significant time to completion 
or implementation which extends beyond the boundaries of the annual operating budget year from July 1 through June 30.  
 
Purchase orders for project funds are presented for informational purposes only and are not included in the attached 
ordinance as they are not annual operating type funds. 
 



11 of 16 
 

The Local Government Commission of the State Treasurer’s Office recommends following the method of Reserve for 
Encumbrances that the City uses above.  The other acceptable method offered requires the City to hold open the prior 
fiscal year to account for encumbrances.  Although it is an acceptable method, the LGC does not recommend the use of 
this method. 
 
 

Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance (Operating Funds Only) 
General Fund 

  
 
 

Stormwater Fund 

 
 
 

Utility Fund 
 

 
 
 
 

Occupancy Tax Fund 

 
 



12 of 16 
 

 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY24-25 Operating Budget for the 
General Fund, Stormwater Fund, Utility Fund and Occupancy Tax Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 
Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-42 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2024-25 FISCAL YEAR” 
 

Item G. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance - NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) 
Division of Water Infrastructure American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Asset Inventory and Assessment (AIA) 
Project No. AIA-W-ARP-0284 (S1107). Ordinance Adopted. The item was submitted by Catherine Gwynn, Finance 
Director. 
 
A project ordinance was created by Council on January 24, 2022 for NCDEQ Viable Utility Reserve (AIA) Project No. 
AIA-D-VUR-0004 and AIA-W-VUR-0004 which created a water and wastewater asset inventory and assessment on the 
city’s infrastructure system. 
 
City Council authorized staff to apply for the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality Division of Water 
Infrastructure Viable Utility Reserve Study Grant at the September 18, 2023 council meeting. 
  
NCDEQ notified the City on April 12, 2024 with a Letter of Intent to Fund Asset Inventory and Assessment ARPA Grant 
for Wastewater AIA (Project No. AIA-W-ARP-0284) for $350,000.  There is no match required by the City.  The project 
will study the Water Reclamation Facility assets, which will update the Wastewater Master Plan last updated in 2009. 
 
A resolution to accept the award is being presented by Robert Sherman, Public Utilities Director at this meeting which 
then allows for the appropriation of the revenues and expenditures in order to execute the terms of the grant agreement.  
The expenditures will be funded with federal grant revenue (ARPA) that will be received by the City through the state. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the grant capital project fund for 
NCDEQ ARPA Asset Inventory and Assessment project (S1107). Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-43 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE NORTH 
CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT ASSET INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT (AIA) (Project No. AIA-W-ARP-0284 
(S1107))” 
 

Item H. Grant Project Budget Amendment for the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund (T2201). Ordinance 
Adopted. The item was submitted by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
In 2016, Council authorized the creation of a stakeholder committee to discuss the concept, assess the need and make 
recommendations to City Council regarding levels of service on the stormwater drainage responsibilities of the City and 
means of funding.  The committee recommended and Council approved the establishment of a stormwater fund and 
implementation of a stormwater fee. The fee was intended to repair and maintain drainage facilities that convey 
stormwater; thereby improving drainage flow, and in many cases the water quality of stormwater.  The fund which was 
established in the FY17-18 budget, would allow stormwater projects to be funded that had not been possible in the past.  
At the June 21, 2021 council meeting, Council authorized the creation of a stormwater project fund to capture the major 
stormwater project improvements funded by the stormwater fees. 
 
 

 

FY24 to FY25

FY23 to FY24 
(Comparative 

Only)
General Fund 1,059,795.16$    2,063,324.43$    
Stormwater Fund 351,283.83         136,455.00        
Utility Fund 1,990,554.28      2,911,751.35     
Downtown MSD Fund -                    9,531.51           
Occupancy Tax Fund 169,400.00         -                   
Total Operating Funds 3,571,033.27$ 5,121,062.29$ 

Smeal Aerial Fire Truck 873,952.00$       1,117,653.00$    
Police Evidence & Fire Station Renovation -                    47,303.85          
JAG 29,213.71          -                   
TIGER Streetscape -                    11,072.72          
VUR MRF Feasibility Grant 2,420.00            67,974.00          
Stormwater Drainage Projects 50,873.09          421,318.51        
Lead & Copper Inventory Project 593,880.00         -                   
Total Project Funds 1,550,338.80$ 1,665,322.08$ 

Total All Fund Types 5,121,372.07$ 6,786,384.37$ 

Analysis of Purchase Order Rollovers by Fund (FY24 to FY25)

 



13 of 16 
 

Stormwater Projects Detail (Before Budget Amendment): 
 
 Project Name Budget Actual Costs to 

Date 
Mapping & GIS Overlay 1,568,086.24 1,521,898.97 
Vine Street 18,738.35 18,738.35 
907 N. Virginia 24,845.39 24,135.01 
Contingency 249,588.02 0.00 
Total 1,861,258.00 1,564,772.33 

 
Attached in the agenda packet is an ordinance amending the Stormwater Capital Project Fund to appropriate additional 
expenses for the completion of the stormwater drainage project at 907 N. Virginia Street for a total of $31,000, and this 
will be funded with an appropriation of Contingency funds. 
     
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance amendment to the Stormwater Capital Project 
Fund (T2201). Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-44 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE STORMWATER 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (T2201)” 
 

Item I. Early Loan Forgiveness for 2019 Urgent Repair Program Deceased Recipient Kevin A. Sutton. 
Resolution Adopted. The item was submitted by Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. 
 
For the 2019 Urgent Repair Program, funded by the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, the City of Goldsboro 
executed a forgivable, deferred loan in the amount of $9,975 (later modified to $10,000 on June 7, 2022, to add soft costs, 
per the NCHFA) as evidenced by a Promissory Note with Kevin A. Sutton. 
 
The City, by way of a procured construction contractor, completed rehabilitation work at Mr. Sutton’s property in 2021.  
Mr. Sutton complied with program requirements by continuing to reside in the residence until his death on June 21, 2024. 
 
Per the terms of the loan agreement, and in accordance with the URP19 Program Guidelines, the URP19 loan is forgiven 
at $2,000 each year, with the entirety of the loan forgiven on June 7, 2026.   
 
It was recommended that the Council adopt the following entitled resolution approving the early forgiveness of the 2019 
Urgent Repair Loan for Kevin A. Sutton in the amount of $4,000. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes)    
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-89 “RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE EARLY FORGIVENESS OF THE URGENT 
REPAIR PROGRAM LOAN TO KEVIN A. SUTTON BY THE NORTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY” 
 

Item J.  Contract Award for CDBG Housing Rehabilitation. Resolution Adopted. The item was submitted by 
Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. 
 
The Community Relations & Development Department has sought qualified contractors to perform housing rehabilitation 
to approved low-moderate income homeowners under the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program. 
 
The City advertised and initiated an official Request for Informal Bids on June 20, 2024, accepting proposals until 2:00 
pm, July 16, 2024.   Community Relations & Development Director and Procurement Manager facilitated a non-
mandatory pre-bid meeting on June 27, 2024 in the Council Chambers Anteroom at City Hall with 3 interested attendees. 
 
The City received 2 bids on or before July 16, 2024 from: 

• Carolina Construction Properties, LLC 
• Silver Ladder Construction, LLC 

 
The Proposal Evaluation Committee, consisting of Community Relations & Development staff met to review and evaluate 
received proposals and submitted scored evaluations to the Procurement Manager on August 8, 2024.   
 
Pursuant to NC General Statute 143-135.9 “Best Value procurements,” Carolina Group Properties, LLC received the 
highest score. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
a contract for a total amount of $163,925 with Carolina Construction Properties, LLC, for CDBG Housing Rehabilitation. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-90 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
FOR CDBG HOUSING REHABILITATION” 
 

Item K. CDBG/HOME Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Minimum Underwriting Standards Guide. 
Approved. The item was submitted by Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. 



14 of 16 
 

The City has been allocated CDBG and HOME funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) to carry out a wide range of community development activities directed toward revitalizing neighborhoods, 
economic development, and providing improved community facilities and services.   
 
Before the City can commit CDBG/HOME funds to a project, it must evaluate the project to determine the amount of 
CDBG/HOME capital subsidy and operating cost assistance necessary to provide quality affordable housing that meets 
the requirements of CPD Notice 16-15, 24 CFR 92.250 and 92.254 and is financially viable throughout the minimum 
affordability period. The City must evaluate the project in accordance with underwriting and subsidy layering guidelines it 
has developed for CDBG/HOME projects.   
 
The City’s project underwriting must include an in-depth review of underlying project assumptions, development sources 
and uses, and projected operating income and expenses, and the project’s long-term financial viability to determine the 
project’s need for CDBG/HOME assistance while preventing over-subsidization of the project. HUD anticipates that all 
applicable projects will rely on combined resources and not solely on the City’s CDBG/HOME funds to create a feasible 
project and maintain compliance with all mandatory funding requirements. 
  
It was recommended that Council adopt the newly developed CDBG/HOME Underwriting & Subsidy Layering 
Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Standards Guide. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 

Item L. Approval of American Rescue Plan (ARP) funding for Sewer System Asset Inventory and 
Assessment (AIA) project. Resolution Adopted. The item was submitted by Robert Sherman, Public Utilities Director. 

 
Resolution No. 2023-63 (Resolution to Apply for State Grant Assistance to Conduct an Asset Inventory and Assessment 
Wastewater Master Plan) was successful. The Sewer System Asset Inventory and Assessment (AIA) project which is to 
be financed by the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant has been awarded to the City of Goldsboro by the 
North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) in the amount of 
$350,000. 
 
At the September 18, 2023 Council Meeting, a resolution was passed that would allow the City to request state grant 
assistance for the AIA project that is critical to allow the region to best understand the condition of the Goldsboro 
Wastewater Plant. This resolution stated that the City of Goldsboro will manage and coordinate for the group, both the 
work to be completed and the financing of the project, if approved for a state grant award. This grant was successful, and 
the City has been awarded $350,000. Accepting this offer will allow the City to perform an AIA study, which will serve 
as a master plan in support of the Merger Regionalization Feasibility study. 
   
Staff recommends that Council approve the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor to approve the 
acceptance of $350,000 that was awarded through the ARP. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-91 “RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FUNDING OFFER FROM THE AMERICAN RESCUE 
PLAN PROJECT# AIA-W-ARP-0284” 
 

Item M. Intent to Purchase Tasers using Procurement Exception. Resolution Adopted. The item was 
submitted by Mike West, Police Chief.  

 
The City of Goldsboro currently uses the Taser X-2 platform, and the system is no longer supported by the manufacturer.  
Axon/Taser is the supplier to the City of Goldsboro and industry leader of Conductive Electricity Weapons (CEW). These 
weapons offer Police Officers a less than lethal option for use of force, have been proven to save lives, as well as prevent 
and reduce the risk of injuries to Officers and suspects.  Taser 10 is the latest of the Axon/Taser’s offerings in CEWs; we 
are choosing this system as it has many upgrades over our current CEWs and will have the longest support life of 
currently offered CEWs.  
 
General Statute 143-129 establishes the State bidding requirements for purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment. Subsection (e)(3) grants the City authority to exempt purchases from the bidding requirements when 
purchases are made through a competitive bidding group purchasing program, which is a formally organized program that 
offers competitively obtained purchasing services at discount prices to two or more public agencies. 
 
AXON offers the Taser 10 program through the Sourcewell Contract CEW Contract #092722-AXN for 5 years.  
 
It was recommended the Council authorize the Police Department to procure the AXON Taser 10 to continue the CEW 
program for the City of Goldsboro Police Department. The purchase will consist of 80 CEWs and certifications, a Master 
Dock, Instructor courses, training supplies, munitions, software licensing, batteries, and extended warranties to cover all 
the systems for the 5-year life of the program. The cost of this program is $392,705.86 with no reoccurring cost for the 5 
years. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-92 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE TASERS USING PROCUREMENT 
EXCEPTION” 
  



15 of 16 
 

Item N. Municipal Ordinance to Enact Speed Limit Concurrence for a Section of NC 581. Ordinance 
Adopted. The item was submitted by Matt Livingston, Interim City Manager. 
 
The N.C. Department of Transportation is seeking to update existing ordinances on NC 581 and has requested that the 
City adopt an ordinance repealing speed limits and enacting speed limits on NC 581. 
 
NCDOT has recently reviewed the speed limit ordinances on NC 581. The mile posting (location) was off by 0.08 and did 
not match the actual municipal limit. This correction requires a repeal & new ordinance based on the mile posting 
changes. The City will need to adopt a concurring ordinance for the following section of roadway: 
 
Enact 45-MPH Zone for: 

• NC 581 between SR 1008 and 0.008 mile southeast of SR 1243 
 
City of Goldsboro current ordinances do not include blanket speed limits for NCDOT maintained streets; therefore, the 
City must adopt an ordinance specific to NCDOT maintained streets within the existing city limits. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance enacting the speed limit for sections of NCDOT 
Highway System Street located within the existing city limits of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 
Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-45 “AN ORDINANCE ENACTING THE SPEED LIMIT FOR SECTIONS OF NCDOT 
HIGHWAY SYSTEM STREET WITHIN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 

Item O.  Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information.  
The various departmental reports for July 2024 were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that 

Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Taylor (7 Ayes) 
 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
City Manager’s Report.  
Interim City Manager Livingston had no report. 
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman White shared the following: I would like to thank District 6 for coming out tonight. I would like to 

apologize to District 4 for us always overlooking them and only seeing them when it's time to vote, so hopefully we get 
that right going forward. 

 
Councilwoman Weeks shared the following: I was just going to remind everybody we've got our schools taking 

back in so everybody watch for school buses and for the safety of our children. I also want to thank District 6 for coming 
out tonight because that showed that you really cared about your community, and you were extremely passionate 
about the subject. Don't get discouraged, everybody always come out and stand up for what you believe in. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared the following: Thank you Councilman White for always being an advocate for 

District 4. Don't forget Cardio and Conversations is going to be this Thursday at 6:00. This week I am going 
to challenge my colleagues that sit to my right and my left, as well as City staff to come out and participate. Also, I just 
got word that there was a line break due to some work that some contractors were doing within the district. I got word 
that line has been fixed but there is currently a drinking water advisory for the Grand at Day Point and Seymour Homes. I 
have posted that notice on the councilwoman page. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews read the notice and shared if there were any 
changes, she would let everyone know.  

 
Councilwoman Taylor had no comments.  
 
Councilman Boyette had no comments.  
 
Councilwoman Jones shared the following: There is a young lady that always comes to our crime watch in West 

Oak and she passed away and so to her family, I want to say that I am deeply sorry, and I will be reaching out to you with 
anything that we can possibly do. She was very active and very passionate about what was going on and I could always 
count on her to make comments and participate and that meant a lot to me. Also, even though her birthday has passed and 
any Elder that I have in my District I always try to go by and give them a flower, Ms. Elizabeth Arrington had a birthday, 
and she was 98 years old, and she worked at the Library of Congress for 35 years.  I did put this on my Facebook page, 
and I would just like to just read it. I'm deeply saddened to hear about the tragic death of a 15-year-old who was shot 
during the early morning and my heart goes out to the family and the friends during this incredibly difficult time. In times 
like these heart-breaking tragedies, it is important that we come together as a community and I do appreciate all the 
conversation that the community as a whole has had about death and youth and crime, but I want us all to come together 
and not only just talk, but act. As far as this young lady, let us offer emotional support when we can, if we know them, 
practical assistance, and help them seek professional help but also be sensitive to their needs. 

 



o

3

p

cl

o

El

0

y

3

0. 

Sth

Y

cG

4) 

U > 

IZ

co

O

O

O

O~ «

i

s. 

s

p 

C

c 

b

co

y

N

Ucz
N

Q >, 

3

y

c0) 

3:° 

3

0

0

cC

ct >, 

G

p

cd

CO

O

O ^

C

N

b
V

W

0

3 ° 

3. 

e

o °'  

o

0n

o

o

ca

0

0

3

0 , 

0

0

C7

to

0

co

o

0

o

Co

3

3 ° 

i

o

0

o

o

U

cn

cz

w

cn

o

o

CO

4to
C;

4

p •

ntvlCrIb
CA

y

O  

co .

O

ti

Ccrn ¢ .(
u - 

E

U

U

O 

O

N •.. + 

0A

U

0A

C1. 

p

Q. 

b

5

O

0

0

0

3

000 ¢ ° 

0 ° 

0

Q. 

0 $", 

0n . 

3

b

cz

C,

3

o .

cqj ° ° 

0

c 

ami

3

a

to

co0q

CO

to

cz

o

to

A

cd

a) 

CO

to

CO

CIS

o'

o'

h

0nU ° 

Cct

CCS

Q) - (+ = - 

h

3

w

CZ ! 

y

rA

j

U

rA

w30an000eami
NU

QOD v + 

O

UI
U

































































1 of 6 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 

WORK SESSION 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 

City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on September 3, 2024.    

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

Absent: Councilman Rod White 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Mayor Gaylor asked that Item E. Crossroads Strategies Agreement on the Consent Agenda 
be moved to Items Requiring Individual Action. Upon motion of Councilwoman Weeks, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, 
and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda as amended.  

Since Mr. Darnay Barefoot with the Wayne County ABC Board was not yet present, Mayor Gaylor asked Mr. Nick 
Rose to present the Planning Commission Report first.  

Appointed Committee Reports 
Work session item b. Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment.  Nick Rose, Chair, spoke concerning the 

Planning Department, and the amount of time it takes for projects to push through. He also mentioned concern over the 
current lack of regulations surrounding vape shops.  

Mayor Gaylor and the Council thanked Mr. Rose for his time and his candor. 

Old Business. 
Work session item a. ABC Commission Presentation.  Darnay Barefoot, Wayne County ABC Board General 

Manager, presented the January – June 2024 quarterly distribution check to Mayor Gaylor, in the amount of $97,650. He also 
provided a graph, attached as Exhibit A. Mr. Barefoot provided an update on new stores being built and stores that are being 
renovated.  

Mayor Gaylor thanked Mr. Barefoot for all that he does, and let him know the City would continue to support his 
efforts. 

Appointed Committee Reports (cont.) 
Work session item c. Mayors Committee for Persons with Disabilities.  Wanda Becton, Chair, shared the 

presentation attached as Exhibit B, updating Council on upcoming events and where additional handicap signage/spaces are 
to be added on Center Street.  

Mayor Gaylor thanked Ms. Becton for her presentation and her time, stating that little things do not substitute for 
big wins, but keeping things on the radar helps make them happen.  

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked how everyone could donate to the all inclusive playground. Felecia Williams, 
Community Relations Director, stated that anyone wanting to donate could write a check to the City, and put ‘All Inclusive 
Playground’ on the subject line; there is a line item set aside for that purpose.  

Work session item d. Recreation Advisory Commission.  Anthony Slater, Co-Chair, stated that they began by 
looking at the structure of the commission to find out why they were having trouble getting quorum for meetings; looking at 
commitment, effective communication, and accountability. He stated that he will call members to ensure they will be 
attending meetings, or find out why they are not coming, and they start each meeting within five minutes of its designated 
start time.  

Mr. Slater continued, stating they were starting a scholarship fund for next fiscal year to help families send children 
to the Parks and Recreation programs. He also stated that they were working on a Parks and Recreation Master Plan to see 
what is needed and where throughout the City. The Master Plan will help plan out placement for greenways and parks; the 
best location for the New Herman Park Center, if it needs to be moved; and will determine if new pools are needed or if the 
current ones can continue to be maintained.  

Item A2



2 of 6 
 

 
Mayor Gaylor asked what the process was for the Master Plan, and how we move forward. Matt Livingston, Interim 

City Manager, stated that we were 10 years behind on a Parks and Recreation Master Plan, which has inhibited the ability to 
get funding for projects, but now we are working on that.  

 
Councilwoman Weeks asked if there was a 501(c)(3) for people to donate to, so that the donation would be tax 

deductible. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director, stated they did not have a 501(c)(3), but there is a designated line 
item for when donations are made. Mayor Gaylor stated that people can make tax deductible donations through the City. 

 
Mayor Gaylor thanked Mr. Slater for his time.  
 
New Business.  

 Work session item e. Nuisance Abatement Process Overview.  Police Chief Mike West shared the presentation 
attached as Exhibit C, stating that additional resources may be needed in order to assist with nuisance abatement. He also 
stated that some of the City Ordinances in Chapter 96 could be antiquated; they need to be reviewed, and changes may be 
brought soon to update the chapter.  
 
 Mayor Gaylor asked at what point they would go after the business license vs. criminal proceedings. Chief West 
stated it would depend on the circumstances when they went in. Ron Lawrence, City Attorney, stated it would also depend 
on if it was a business or residence; it could be seized under State law Chapter 19, and Code Enforcement could demolish 
the home if there are funds appropriated.  
 
 Councilwoman Taylor asked how we would pursue the situation when people were living in a home without water. 
Attorney Lawrence stated that Code Enforcement could contact County Attorney Andrew Neal, and he could contact the 
appropriate parties with the Health Department.  
 

Councilwoman Taylor asked what the typical time frame was for response. Chief West stated that it would typically 
be 30-60 days, but it has gone over that. Attorney Lawrence stated that Chapter 19 did not have dates built in, since 
investigations had to be allowed enough time to gather evidence.  
  
 Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked how they could support clean-up efforts if a property did not meet abatement 
criteria. Chief West stated that conversations could be had to give them the chance to clean-up before things reached the 
point of needing abatement. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked to be involved in any conversations in District 4.  
 
 Councilman Boyette asked if Council could be kept in the loop regarding which businesses were a hot spot, perhaps 
once month in the managers weekly reports. Mayor Gaylor stated that he would not want to release any names publicly if 
only conversations were being held, but they may be able to find a threshold that meets the objectives.  
 

Mayor Gaylor thanked Chief West, and stated they appreciated his time.  
 
 Work session item f. Council Code of Ethics Policy Discussion.  The item was presented by Mayor Gaylor.   
 

Council’s Code of Ethics is codified in the Code of Ordinances in Chapter 31, Officials and Employees. The Code 
of Ethics Ordinance was adopted as part of the 70’s code and revised in 1991 and 2018.  The Resolution Adopting a Code of 
Ethics for the City of Goldsboro was adopted on September 20, 2010. The resolution was adopted due to the North Carolina 
General Assembly ratifying House Bill 1452 in 2009, requiring local governing boards to adopt a resolution or policy 
containing a code of ethics to guide actions by the governing board.    
 

The mayor and city clerk have been working to take the existing Code of Ethics and update the resolution into 
policy format to bring transparency to policies and make access to policies easier for Council and citizens.  The mayor 
requests that Council review the ordinance and resolution and provide feedback regarding other provisions needed to bring 
the current Code of Ethics into current standards. Also attached for review is the current NC General Statue related to 
Closed Session.   
 

It was recommended that Council review the attached documents and contact the City Clerk with recommended 
revisions on the ordinance and resolution as soon as possible. 

 
Mayor Gaylor stated there had been some things frustrating the purpose of Closed Session, and we have a new 

Council that may or may not be aware. He emphasized that Council was not voting tonight, but Council was reminded that 
the document existed, and asked them to look it over to see if anything should be added or updated. Mayor Gaylor asked for 
Council to email the Clerks, Manager, or himself over the next couple of weeks with any ideas, comments, or suggestions. 

 
Mayor Gaylor suggested adding that Council annually sign statements acknowledging their internal code of ethics 

to accompany the ethics course and statement already required of them. He reiterated they would not be voting on anything 
tonight, but he would like to vote on an update in the next couple of meetings.  

 



3 of 6 
 

Ron Lawrence, City Attorney, reiterated that what happens in Closed Session should stay in Closed Session; the 
information will become public, but if let out too soon, it frustrates the reason for going into Closed Session, and there is no 
reason to go into Closed session.  
 

Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Item E. Crossroads Strategies Agreement. The item was presented by Mayor Gaylor.  

 
The Roosevelt Group currently provides advocacy and consulting services to the City of Goldsboro and Wayne County 

governments. The City of Goldsboro has in consultation with the County and Friends of Seymour made the decision to change 
consultants to support the relationship the City has with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and state and federal legislators.  

 
Crossroads Strategies (CRS) is a bipartisan, multi-disciplinary federal relations, advocacy, and advisory firm based 

in Washington DC.  Founded in 2010 by longtime advocacy industry veterans, CRS offers a comprehensive suite of services 
ranging from congressional affairs to agency and regulatory lobbying.   

 
The City Council approved an agreement with Crossroads Strategies for advocacy and consulting services on March 

4, 2024 which was effective through June 30, 2024.  
  
Crossroads Strategies will advise the City, County and Friends of Seymour on legislative issues impacting Seymour 

Johnson Air Force Base. They will also work with federal agencies on behalf of the City.  
 
The terms of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2024, and remain in effect through June 30, 2025. The City 

of Goldsboro and County of Wayne will pay Crossroads Strategies a monthly retainer of $15,000 ($7,500 each). Crossroads 
Strategies shall send invoices approximately quarterly at the beginning of each quarter to the City of Goldsboro and the 
County of Wayne in the amount of $22,500.00 due from each entity covering time periods as follows: 7/1/24 - 9/30/24, 
10/1/24 - 12/31/24, 1/1/25 - 3/30/25, and 4/1/25 - 6/30/25. 

 
The City and County will reimburse Crossroads Strategies for all reasonable expenses associated with the above 

services, the expenditure of which shall be pre-approved. 
 
The deliverables of the agreement are listed in the attached agreement.  
 
Henry Smith and Ken Gerrard, representing Friends of Seymour, will be the primary points of contact. Recurring 

updates and regular access to Crossroads Strategies will be provided to City and County leadership.  
  
Staff recommended Council adopt the following Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

agreement with Crossroads Strategies.   
 
Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager, pointed out that the contract does require a bi-weekly phone call and 

written reports as needed, since City Council wanted to see the contact and communication spelled out more. Ron 
Lawrence, City Attorney, confirmed that the terms lined out in the letter presented would be transposed into the City's form 
and format to be executed.  

 
 Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the terms of the agreement as presented, the motion was seconded 
by Councilman Boyette and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Resolution.  
  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-93 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH CROSSROADS STRATEGIES” 

 
Closed Session.  
Upon motion of Councilwoman Weeks, seconded by Councilman Boyette, and unanimously carried, Council went 

into Closed Session to discuss a personnel matter.  
 

After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session, and proceeded to Council Chambers to begin 
the Regular Meeting in Open Session. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 7:09 p.m. on September 3, 2024.  
 

Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:09 p.m. 
 

Father David Wyly, Police Chaplain, provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed, led by the Boy 
Scouts of America, Troop #8, from New Hope Methodist Church. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 



4 of 6 
 

Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

 
Absent:   Councilman Rod White 
  
Presentations. 
Item A. Employees and Supervisor of the Year. Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager, presented the following 

awards: 
 
The Supervisor of the Year Award: Matthew Langley. Matthew Langley is the Distribution Operations Manager for 

the Distribution and Collections Division of the Public Works Department. He always strives to improve the Division as a 
whole, which has been even more apparent in his accomplishments in recent months. His can-do attitude, steadfast dedication, 
and determination, enable his team to resolve every challenge; ensuring customer needs are met, while improving procedures 
and saving thousands of dollars. 

 
Matthew approaches every task from a customer-first perspective, scheduling repairs to limit the negative impact on 

local businesses. In the last three months his team has completed a total of 119 work orders. In addition to routine 
maintenance, Matthew has played a key leadership role in the William Street widening and the Mt. Olive Pickle projects, 
actively participating in meetings to ensure the success of projects.  

 
In November, Matthew took the lead to repair a significant sewer manhole failure. He coordinated getting bypass 

pumps set up, preventing sewage from backing up into resident's homes and averting a sanitary sewer overflow. The manhole 
was replaced without incident; saving the City approximately $30K in contractor costs, and building confidence in staff. 

 
Matthew recently obtained his A-Distribution certification, allowing him to officially become the City's Water 

Distribution Operator in Responsible Charge (ORC). He is scheduled to take the Cross-Connection exam, which will 
complete his water distribution certifications. Matthew also successfully completed his Associate Degree from Liberty 
University. 

 
Mathew's keen attention to detail and service mindset set him apart; he is a 100% committed and dedicated team 

player, who answers every call without fail. Matthew's work ethic and accomplishments reflect well upon himself and the 
City of Goldsboro. 

 
Director Rick Fletcher stated that Matthew makes Public Works shine. He thanked him for everything he does; stating 

he is a valued member of the team, and they would be lost without him. 
 
The Employee of the Year Award: Hakiem Johnson. On February 8th, 2024, while on foot patrol in the downtown 

area, Police Support Technician Hakiem Johnson was alert, cognizant, and situationally aware of his surroundings. He 
observed and reported a working structure fire in the 100 block of South Center Street. Hakiem radioed the fire into Wayne 
County Communications and immediately began to notify and evacuate residents of the affected structure and apartments. 
He also assisted in the evacuation of animals by catching them as the residents tossed them from the second floor of the 
structure. In total, 5 residents and 2 pets were successfully evacuated. 

 
Hakiem’s situational awareness and quick thinking prevented further damage and potential loss of life, and enabled 

our fellow First Responders with the Fire Department to respond quickly and suppress the fire before the structure became 
fully engulfed in flames. His actions and early warning stopped the fire from potentially spreading to neighboring attached 
structures, which could have been catastrophic for many other residents and business owners. 

 
Hakiem’s actions are a direct reflection of his professionalism and his desire to serve not only the Goldsboro Police 

Department but the community as a whole. Hakiem’s work ethic and situational awareness reflect well on himself and the 
City of Goldsboro. 

 
Hakiem thanked everyone that came out to support him, especially his girlfriend Kim St Louis. As photos were being 

taken, he got down on one knee and proposed! Mayor Gaylor and the Council congratulated them both. 
 
The Employee of the Year Award: Michael Braswell. Michael Braswell is performing the duties of a Senior 

Maintenance Technician, training four Maintenance Technicians, filling the role of a supervisor, and he performs 
Superintendent duties when needed. Michael also strives to improve his knowledge and skill set, recently completing 
certification for Facilities and Grounds Manager through the American Public Works Association.  

 
Michael has spearheaded numerous large projects including the re-installation of street light poles and rewiring food 

truck poles at The Hub, saving the city several thousand dollars. He was also responsible for leading the Building and 



5 of 6 
 

Grounds Maintenance crews in preparation for the Main Street USA Conference. Michael’s leadership and assistance led to 
the changing of 168 banners on Center Street and in the John Street parking lot, 26 window/door coverings installed at 
Goldsboro Union Station, hanging a new sign at The Hub, and numerous other improvements to ensure Downtown 
Goldsboro shined; all accomplished in a 2-week timeframe.  

 
Michael is a volunteer on the ART Steering Committee, providing guidance on the installation process of the artwork 

for both the artist and the City. As a volunteer with the Arts Council, he has assisted in numerous projects helping to 
improve the aesthetics of our downtown.  

 
Michael is a consummate team player, a benefit to Building and Grounds, Public Works, and the City of Goldsboro. 

He has a deep desire to improve the aesthetics, distinction, and reputation of the City of Goldsboro. Michael’s work ethic 
and accomplishments reflect well on himself and the City of Goldsboro. 

 
Supervisor Bill Peter stated it is an honor and privilege to work with Michael, and congratulated him.  
 
Item B. Suicide Prevention Awareness Proclamation. Read by Mayor Gaylor. the Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed SUICIDE PREVENTION AWARENESS in the City of Goldsboro, and called upon all citizens to create hope 
through action, and encouraged all residents to take the time to understand the importance of mental health education and 
recognize that taking care of ourselves and others includes taking care of mental health. 

 
Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Melissa Reese, Community Liaison Coordinator, and Victoria Jackson, 

Regional VP, from Trillium Health Resources. Ms. Jackson spoke about suicide prevention and the resources Trillium 
provides, and provided informational handouts, attached as Exhibit D.  

 
Item C. Latino Heritage Month Proclamation. Read by Mayor Gaylor. The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed 

September 15 - October 15, 2024 as LATINO HERITAGE MONTH in Goldsboro, North Carolina and extended best 
wishes to all of our communities as they hold appropriate ceremonies to commemorate this observance. 

 
Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Andrea Freile and other representatives of the community. Ms. Freile 

stated that Latinos are not an individualistic Community, they are a collaborative community. She also thanked Council for 
including in the proclamation the section stating, “we work endlessly to create a more socially-inclusive and diverse society 
with equality for all populations,” and thanked them for letting them come to the meeting tonight.  

 
Ceremonial Documents. 
Item D. Constitution Week Proclamation. Read by Mayor Gaylor. The Goldsboro City Council commemorated the 

official recognition being given to this magnificent document on its anniversary and proclaimed the week of September 17 – 
23, 2024 as CONSTITUTION WEEK in Goldsboro, North Carolina and asked our citizens to reaffirm the ideals that the 
Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our 
liberties, remembering that lost rights may never be regained. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Albert Van Kleeck, spoke concerning crime in his neighborhood, specifically drugs, prostitution, and gun 
violence. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 2:49:20) 

2. Richard Taylor, spoke concerning the death of Jaydin Vann, asking for more to be done regarding the 
investigation. (Full comments are available on YouTube at 2:55:52) 

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
City Manager’s Report. Matthew Livingston shared:  A reminder that Thursday night is Taste of Wayne, and the 

kickoff to the Freedom Fest, and of course, Saturday is Freedom Fest; big events for the City of Goldsboro. At the 
administration level, departments put forth their best management practices. We're implementing those and will have a report 
on that in a month or so. Also, next meeting we should have a budget calendar for you to look at. Part of that is trying to 
figure out dates for our retreat. We’re getting our capital improvement plan updated. Again, we're going to go before the 
LGC to get off the UAL list and we're asking for some money because we’re going to have to do some borrowing. We’re 
involved in the comprehensive transportation master plan and the bike ped plan now through the MPO; we'll be seeing a 
presentation on that in a few weeks. We've also started a pavement condition rating index study; we should be finished with 
that in about 30 days as well. All this ties into assessing what our needs are going forward in the upcoming budget years, and 
the Capital Improvement Plan.   

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilwoman Jones: Just a few reminders. We're all trying to be safe, there's a lot of criminal activity going on, and 

there are some things that we as citizens can do. It is getting darker, so think about filling up your gas tank before sunset, 
and have an extra charger with your cell phone. Try to make no visits at the ATM whenever it's dark, and ladies, if you're 
getting out of the car and you're alone, do not unlock your car until you're getting ready to get out, and then unlock your car 
and get out. And just stay safe. We want everybody safe and protected. 

 



o ° 

o

o

0 ` ` 

14-

4

rA

a , (

L) 

mo

o. ° 

a

oo ~ 

o

b

0

o

o

O' 

1. 

v~ 

V• >, 

is ^

C •' ^

O

O

CO

03

cn

r.• :• '

C

vi

O + >, .-

t::

U  

co

3

a

O >, '

cri

aap
a0i

O ¢ 

v

o ` °' 

a 

o

3 

v, 

b

3

3

oOA)
o

o °' 

fl

O >, " 

o

3

0° 

v° 

Gq

y

o °' ' :

3

v° 

two

U -

o

o -

o

ca

N -

0 . 

o

cd :

3.

0

o

bo . 

0

rA

C4;,

4 >, 

ani     

a -

d  

3  

to  ' 

o

Y

o  

a ° - 

o

Ct  -  . = = .

5  

0 ` '  '

o

o (

Du
Cd

o

Q. 

o ' 

ai > 

a°, ° ; 

0 '

b

a -

o

o

a 

ae

a °' 

0

O

tn > 

ob

i-

14

U

sb:

AM
cz

cd

QO
O

cy

c

to

t. 

CO) 

M

ObA -

O

ai

rn

O

O

N

0

b4

O

Y

u

to

0 `" 

O

0, 

v°
i

o. 

3 ° 

0

4, °' ' 

N

on

O

Q. 

ti

x
3. >, 

chi, 

bA

D

O . 

cC

p

cn

vi ~" 

O > 

N

y

2r ° 

O

N ; 

cO

O 

bA

bA

y . 

44" 

O

0

Q

y

0

cYi 

t". 

N

sem.-

I

y

O

o '

C7 ^ 

O '

bA '

b

O° 

cC ° 

N > ' ,

ti

cC

O ^ 

O

N

w

O

i" 

bq
C 

3

N '

G

C3 , 

O

O

cU

V

U

O

y  ' 

y

u

0

O >, 

E

o

cd

rn

N +- 

N

Cdw

G: 

O

t. 

O

M

O

N

w >, 

p -- 

N  ° 

Q. 

bp
c

co0. >, OCZ "
o

vOi

O

N

N

m

O

Cl

v

3cl
0 (:"  ° ° ' 

0

3

a

o

O

N

b

M , ~ 

5 '

d -

d —

14

bb . 

p ' 

w '

A

3

3

v

b .

0

c 

b °' 

an

9cn
0

o '.. 

0

3

A

3 .

4

O

GJ

N

c,. 

t". , 

U

y

O

N

O

u

Vcd
U

4N

O

b

cl

o

a¢
i

o

m

r. 

cl °°  

0 , 

o ;~ 

o ` 

ani >, -° 

aoi

vi

o

O

IP

N

cC ° " , 

U -

d

cd , - 

N '

C '

C

U

3~ 

CO

p

O ^

d

i

o ° 

o

o

y

0

0

o .

b .

d

a) 

rA

0 ° 

N ° ° 

a , >,  " ° 

0

0  

bo  °'  

o

O  

bo ,  `*"  

0

tz

cd0 >, 

o -

o

E  ? 

a .

b

a -

o

o

o

0

3 ° 

O •' °' ° 

CA

is

O

C °' ° 

N

n

3 + . " 

c 

b

O

v, 

W

rn , ° 

m >, > 

GJ

U

c,

3

ri) 

cd

o0

00 ° 

0

a , , 

Q

a"
i

o

4. 

3 ° 

0 _0

co

0 , `

o

o

to ° 

O

C, 

y

3 '

S

r

a>
i ,°, '-°

o  

0 '°

o

w

i

s `

0 ',' 

o

a

C

GG

03 (

U

o

oo ° 

a 

fs. > 

o

o ° 

0

O , 

o >, 

h

0

a 

o

o ° 

a " 

64

o

a > 

El = 

o

Q

a ° °

Cd

a 

0

C4-. 

0

4,

0°

cz3 ° 

CIS

m

0

0 , ; ° , 

o ; 

4: >, 

o

a

0

0 .. 

0

a ~ 

a _+- 

CO

O

N " "

C `

n -- 

O

y ° ° 

N

3+ '

b «

s .

dr. 
U

o

49. 

o

U

0 ° ° 

W , , 

o

U

U

a . ° 

oo >, 

o

m

cz ' ~ ' °' >; ' 

00

0 °' -

o

t . 

0

3

ocli
0

0

3 ° ° 

3

o

p > 

a>

i

o

0 °

q

o
a°'

i °' 

o

o

v

o

F- 

W

0

3

3

3

ss

3

C7

Z

co —

M

0

0

O. 

U

as - 

M ~ >, 

c

























RESOLUTION NO. 2024- I V
RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

RALPH " TREY" BALL, III

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 28 YEARS

WHEREAS, Ralph " Trey" Ball, III retires on October 1, 2024 as a Police Captain, with more than
28 years of service with the Police Department; and

WHEREAS, Trey began his career on August 23, 1995 as a Police Cadet with the Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on July 10, 1996, Trey was hired as a Police Officer with the Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2001, Trey was promoted to Corporal with the Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on September 10, 2003, Trey was promoted to Investigator with the Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on September 28, 2005, Trey was promoted to Sergeant with the Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on September 19, 2012, Trey was promoted to Captain with the Police Department, 
where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Trey has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained
the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of
themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Trey Ball their
deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that we express to Ralph " Trey" Ball, III our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in
full force and effect from and after this

16th

day of September, 2024. 

Attested by: 

CL-,. 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

LD
Charles Gaylor, IV

Mayor

9

TE



Page 1 of 5 

Item _______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: SU-15-24 Henry Lee Battle Jr. - East side of S. James Street between 
Spruce Street and Pine Street 

Applicant requests a Special Use Permit to allow the operation of a place of 
entertainment with ABC permits.   

Frontage: 111.94 ft.  

Depth: 205.88 ft. 

Area: 22,951 sq. ft. or 0.526 acres 

Zoning:  Central Business District (CBD) 

BACKGROUND: The site is the location of the former Elk’s Lodge, and the physical address of the 
property is 312 S. James Street.   

In 2007 and 2008, City Council denied Special Use Permits to operate a place of 
entertainment with ABC permits and without ABC permits, respectively, at the 
subject property.   

In 2010, City Council approved site and landscape plans to allow an indoor flea 
market to operate upon the property.  Since the applicant never commenced 
development of the property, the site plan expired, and the property remained 
vacant. 

On July 15, 2019, Goldsboro City Council amended the City’s Unified 
Development Code as it pertained to bars, nightclubs, pool halls, microbreweries, 
places of entertainment (both public, private and non-profit) with ABC Permits.  
The following regulations were approved as they pertain to places of 
entertainment: 

1. Within that area of the CBD bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east
side of George Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of
William Street, there shall be no minimum separation distance from
residentially zoned or developed property.  A 50 ft. minimum separation
distance shall be required for stand-alone churches or schools.

2. For the remainder of the CBD, not described by the boundaries above, the
minimum separation distance from residentially zoned or developed
property, stand-alone churches or schools shall be one hundred feet.

3. In the CBD, there shall be no minimum separation distance between two
such establishments.

4. Within that area of the CBD bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east
side of George Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of
William Street there shall be no minimum off-street parking requirements.

On December 16, 2019, City Council approved the applicant’s request for a 
Special Use Permit to allow the operation of a place of entertainment with ABC 

D



Page 2 of 5 
 

permits to rent the property for special occasions such as birthday parties, 
ballroom dancing and dancing lessons, wedding receptions, family reunions, live 
entertainment.  Since the applicant never commenced development of the 
property before the expiration of two years, the Special Use Permit expired, and 
the property has since remained vacant. 

 The property is zoned CBD (Central Business District) and is not located in the 
Historic District.  A place of entertainment with ABC permits is permitted in the 
CBD only after the issuance of a Special Use Permit approved by City Council.   

As previously stated, the site was the location of the former Elk’s Lodge.  It 
contains an existing single-story, brick-veneer and concrete block building of 
approximately 3,408 sq. ft. on one private lot.  

The existing site is adjacent to single-family residential homes to the north and 
four vacant, undeveloped lots to the south.  East of the site exists a city-owned 
parking lot and a vacant commercial building. Across the street exists a 
residential duplex, child daycare and two vacant undeveloped lots.   

Land-Use Plan:  The City’s Land-Use Plan locates this property within the 
Mixed-Use Downtown land use designation.  The Central Business District is a 
corresponding zoning district for the Mixed-Use Downtown land use designation. 

DISCUSSION: 

 The applicant has submitted a preliminary site plan and floor plan for the 
proposed use to be reviewed by planning staff and city council.  The floor plan 
indicates a main ballroom assembly area consisting of approximately 1,568 sq. 
ft., a seating area consisting of 14 tables and 84 chairs, a kitchen, storage rooms, 
offices and restrooms. 

According to the applicant, the facility would be available to rent for special 
occasions such as birthday parties, ballroom dancing and dancing lessons, 
wedding receptions, family reunions and live entertainment.  
 
Days/Hours of Operation: Reservations only (Thursday-Sunday) 

5:00pm-3:00am or other times as approved by 
owner 

No. of Employees:    4  

Refuse Collection:   Private commercial dumpster 

Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

North  CBD Residential-single family 

South CBD Vacant and undeveloped land 

East CBD City-owned parking lot/existing commercial 

West CBD Residential duplex/daycare/vacant and 
undeveloped land 























 

 
 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Mark E. Helmer, AICP, CFM,  

Planning Director 

 

 

 
Notice Of Public Hearings 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Goldsboro will conduct a public 
hearings during the course of their open meeting which starts at 7:00 P.M. on Monday, 
September 16, 2024, in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 214 North Center Street 
to consider the following requests. 
 

UDO-02-24 City of Goldsboro: The applicant is requesting to amend the City 
of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances, Chapter 90: Abandoned and Junked Vehicles. 
The ordinance amendment as proposed will bring clarity and consistency with 
NCGS 160A-303. 
 
SUP-15-24 Henry Lee Battle, Jr.: The applicant is requesting to construct and 
operate a place on entertainment on three parcels of land totaling approximately 
.5 acres and located within the Central Business (CBD) zoning district. The 
properties considered for approval are located on the east side of South James 
Street approximately 250 feet south of its intersection with West Spruce Street. 
The properties are further identified as NCPIN# 2599-84-1757, 2599-84-1743 
and 2599-84-1730. 
 

All interested persons are encouraged to attend. To accommodate disabilities and to comply 
with ADA regulations, please contact City Hall if further assistance is needed. All inquiries 
regarding this matter may be directed to the City of Goldsboro Planning Department at (919) 
580-4313 or online at www.goldsboronc.gov.  

 
 
Publish Thursday, September 6, 2024 
Publish Thursday, September 13, 2024 



E





dW

b
A

O

4--+ 

O

p

U

O

z

O
O

0

O

o

LO

sem. 

cd03
N

y •'. 

O

cn

Cd

w

O

U

N

w

O

N

Q

A

Sr

e3

GQ- 

Gp 

cn

C

3

c,

o

m

Lo

A

a 

s.  

3c

V

U

clib

ooa

o

oo

ci

o

m

P- 

w

o

a 

o

m

O

o

U

U

cnV

p

ocn

b

Q

U

uC

n

U

bA

0

a3

U

UU

N

cn

O

4-
1

O

U ' 

O

O

P. 

C7

cC

cYJ

O • 

i

ClO
U

P. 

b

ct

V

0

CV

r -

i

GQ, 

GAI

E03

Efl

m

O

o

w

I" 

o

r

C, 

C4

w

7C

Cd

DC7

cn

aq

J

U

B

O

O

O 

O

0

A

rt" 

t- 

O

O= 

O

N

00

L

Lo

N

LO

N

N

L

L- 

d' 

N -

o

00

41

cm

00

d

cV

06

O

cl

cC

L

cri

ci, 

67

O

d' 

d+ 

U

m

O

1' 

O

N

It

ceJ

O

4

oo

00

Co

Lo

m

Lfl

m

O

1

cz

C

3

Cd

U

u

0

cq

Ef3

Cd

Ct

ct

o

on

o

C7

3

01, 

w

cz

b

A

U

4-

1

b

N

cc

5V

U

an

o. 

tt

N

Q. 

y

a 

b

U

U

U

3

9.
1.° 

O

cn

i

cn

coi

ambo

3

300
3' 

3 

O

cnO

O

CO

d

F- 

Cl) 

C7

40, 

0

0

0

0

O
O

0

O

o

LO

Lo

U
U

N

O

00

L6

L6

000

L6

N

wA

Sr

e3

GQ- 

Gp 

o

c,

o

m

Lo

A

o000oco000

coo
m

LLo

ooa
o

oo

ci

o

cq

m

LO

U 

cl

o

LO  

o

a 

o

m

O

o

t- 

O

o

co

o

N

00

y

LO

cq

LO

N

c- 

I

N
I" 

L-- 

00

co

LO

O

m

d" 

O
L- 

d' 

m

Lo

y

00

00

co

LO

C7

cC

cYJ

O • 

i

y 

000

C

r- 

L 

Cp
C*

J

d

co

CV

r -

i

GQ, 

GAI

E03

Efl

m

O

m

O
I" 

O

O

00

O

O

O

O

O

cc *» 
aq

00

J

7

m

O

O

m

rt" 

t- 

O

O= 

O

N

00

L

Lo

N

LO

N

N

L

L- 

d' 

N -

o

00

41

cm

00

d

cV

06

O

cl

cC

L

cri

ci, 

67

O

d' 

d+ 

cD

m

O

1' 

O

N

It

ceJ

O

4

oo

00

Co

Lo

m

Lfl

m

O

1

L

cc

N

cc

C . 

V5

U

0

10

cq

Ef3

EA

Ef3

Ef3

Ef3

MS4Cl) 
s~ 

a 

C') a) 

m
0

W  

Cl) cz

d

E4

m

dAczND

aQ) 

mOw
N

s~ 

w

w

o

o

y

9

m

N

m

m

m

A

bon

o

4)

EFU  
Gell

I

Ef3

I

SII

GOD -

1

Ga

tfJ

0

0

0

0

0

coo

coo

LO

Lo

U
U

N

O

00

O

0000

ON

a Sr w

co

o

Uc`
1v

A

68, 

cq

GPI

GOGI
E» 

cooo

L

o00

C11

00

000

0

000

C

Lo

Cc

m

ua

yyi

e., 

000

cc *» aq

00

J

7

N

Gell

I

Ef3

I

SII

GOD -
1

Ga

tfJ

A
A

whaF

E& 

169-

11

EF}
I

Efl

O

0

coo

coo

LO

Lo

C9

N00

000

000

N

Sr

COV

co

o

Uc`
1v

cq

A
AwhaF

E& 

169-
11

EF}
I

Efl



VtrWWMA

m

fA

MII

m

rill

SII

Ge 

O

m

w

7:

1

0

0

0

LO

C13
C.

6

6

06

000

m

0

L6

C6

O

d4

O

N

t

C6

ca

CV

ER

m

fA

MII

m

rill

SII

Ge 

O

m

w

7:

1

O

O

00

rb

E- 

Lo

a) 

y

O

O

LO

CNV

000

It

zA

CIO5

P-
4

LO

00

o

0

d  

a 

LO

cz

U

m -

i

F

I-

4

GOD- 

1y

a, 

0

cc

S

0

0

m

fA

MII

m

rill

SII

Ge 

Ef}

II

GOD

I

Ef}

II

Ef3

O

O

O

O

00

Lo

O

O

LO

CNV

000

It

t

L6
c

r -
i

ao

LO

00

d

d  

a 

LO

LOU

m -

i

F

GOD- 

68, 

GOD- 

1y

a, 

0

cc

S

0

0

U

m4

5•

i

ll " 

U

CA

N

1-

1 

y • 

a) 

cC°

i

000
zv

06

C6

te

00

m

O

in

LO

m  

Ef}

II

GOD
I

Ef}

II

Ef3

2

a) 

O  bA

O .-

dCd

U

cn

in,  

a 

O

U

U

w

N '

b

O

C
cn

CIO

H

0
u

N

E— 

C3

Q  

U

U

F

C) 

c

1yC) 

U

S

U

m4

5•

i

ll " 

U

N

y • 

a) 

O

vW
W

41

ani

w

R' 

U

F

E-
q

E 

2

a) 

O  
bA

O .-

dCd

U

cn

in,  

a 

O

U

U

w

N '

b

O

Ccn

CIO

H

0u

N

E— 

C3

Q  

U



H



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 1 5 - 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE POLICE CHIEF TO ENTER INTO A

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH NC DHHS AND CHERRY HOSPITAL

WHEREAS, Goldsboro Police Department and DHHS/ Cherry Hospital have formalized a
Memorandum of Agreement allowing Goldsboro Police Department to use DHHS/ Cherry Hospital
grounds or facilities as staging areas for training exercises; and

WHEREAS, the terms of this agreement, as modified with the consent of both parties, will

expire one ( 1) year from date of execution, upon mutual agreement, this contract can be extended for a

period of one ( 1) year on a yearly basis. This agreement will remain in effect until terminated by one of
the parties. Either party may terminate this agreement, without cause, upon sixty days' ( 60) written
notice. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro that the MOA between Goldsboro Police Department and DHHS/ Cherry Hospital, shall be
approved as agreed to by both parties, based on the terms and conditions contained within the MOA. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
16th

day of September, 2024. 

Attested by: 

K-XA---- L

Laura Getz

City Clerk

LCharles Gayl r, IV

Mayor



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) 
 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT (GPD) 
and 

NC DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (DHHS) & 
CHERRY HOSPITAL 

 
SUBJECT:  Use of Cherry Hospital Grounds or Facilities for Training Exercises 
 
1.  Purpose: This MOA formalizes the relationship and defines the responsibilities of the GPD 
regarding the utilization of DHHS/Cherry Hospital grounds or facilities during training exercises 
and incidents. 
 
2.  Background: The Goldsboro Police Department has coordinated in the past for use 
DHHS/Cherry Hospital grounds or facilities for staging areas for training exercises. Both parties 
have agreed to formalize this relationship through a MOA. 
 
3.  Responsibilities: 
 
 A.  GPD through its authorized representative shall: 
 

(1) Provide the following authorized Cherry Hospital Representatives and NC DHHS 
Property & Construction Division Representatives with an expected training exercise 
schedule no less than thirty (30) days’ prior to requested dates to include: 

 
Randy Pipkin 
Maintenance and Construction Manager II 
Email: randy.pipkin@dhhs.nc.gov 

   Phone: 919-330-6434 
 

David Krotoszynski 
Chief Property Acquisition, Disposition, & Risk Management 
Division of Property & Construction, NC DHHS 

   Phone: 919-630-3635 
 

(2) Coordinate with authorized Cherry Hospital Representatives to arrange access to 
predetermined areas of Cherry Hospital grounds or facilities prior to the training 
exercise. Accessible areas are subject to change and Cherry Hospital/DHHS will not 
be held in violation of this contract if the predetermined areas become unavailable or 
inaccessible. The Cherry Hospital Representative will communicate any changes to 
access of the predetermined areas within a reasonable time prior to the training 
exercise. 



 
(3) Coordinate with Cherry Hospital Representatives to arrange access to Cherry 

Hospital’s grounds or facilities in the event of an incident.  
 
(4) Shall not use unauthorized areas of the DHHS/Cherry Hospital grounds or facilities. 

Unauthorized areas include any buildings actively used for the regular course of 
business where staff or patients are permitted. 

 
(5) This contract expires one (1) year from the date of execution. Upon mutual 

agreement, this contract can be extended for a period of one (1) year on a yearly 
basis. 

 
4.  Personnel:  Each Party is responsible for all costs of its personnel, including pay and benefits, 
support, and travel. Each Party is responsible for supervision and management of its personnel. 
 

 5.  Liability:  Without otherwise waiving sovereign immunity, each Party agrees to be 
responsible for any damage or injury caused by or through the negligence, gross negligence, or 
willful misconduct of its employees or agents to the other Party, its employees or agents, 
committed in the performance of this MOA. Further, without waiving sovereign immunity or any 
other defense, each party shall be responsible and liable for any claims, liabilities, demands, 
lawsuits and expenses, including attorney's fees, relating to the acts or omissions of that party, 
its agents and employees, committed in the performance of this MOA. In the event a claim is 
made against either party relating to the performance of this MOA, it is the intent of both parties 
to cooperate in the defense of such claims and to cause their insurers, if any, to do likewise; 
provided, however, each party shall retain the right to take any and all action it believes 
necessary to protect its interests. 

  
 6.  Modification:  This agreement may be modified upon the mutual written consent of the 

parties.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to conflict with current law or regulation.  If a 
term of this agreement is inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the 
remaining terms and conditions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
7. Enforceability: This Memorandum of Agreement is intended for the sole and exclusive 
benefit of the parties hereto. Nothing in this Memorandum of Agreement, express or implied, is 
intended to confer on any other person or entity any legal or equitable claims, rights, or remedies 
in or by reason of this Memorandum of Agreement.  No person or entity, other than the signatory 
parties to this Memorandum of Agreement, may enforce any part of this Memorandum of 
Agreement or shall have any rights hereunder.  

8.  Termination:  The terms of this agreement, as modified with the consent of both parties, will 
remain in effect until terminated by one of the parties. Either party may, upon sixty (60) days 
written notice to the other party, terminate this agreement without cause. 
 



9. Governing Law and Venue.  The validity of this MOA and any of its terms or provisions, as 
well as the rights and duties of the parties to this MOA, are governed by the laws of North Carolina. 
The Parties, by signing this MOA, agree and submit, solely for matters concerning this MOA, to 
the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of North Carolina and agree, solely for such purpose, that 
the exclusive venue for any legal proceedings shall be Wayne County, North Carolina. The place 
of this MOA and all transactions and agreements relating to it, and their situs and forum, shall be 
Wayne County, North Carolina, where all matters, whether sounding in contract or tort, relating 
to the validity, construction, interpretation, and enforcement shall be determined. 
 
10. Communications: To provide consistent and effective communication between the parties, 
each party shall appoint a Principal Representative to serve as its central point of contact 
responsible for coordinating and implementing this MOA.  
 
The GPD Principal Representative shall be: 

 Major Paige Learnard 
 Goldsboro Police Department 
 Email: plearnard@goldsboronc.gov  
 Phone: 919-738-7008 
 
The Cherry Hospital Representative shall be:  

Randy Pipkin 
Maintenance and Construction Manager II 
Email: randy.pipkin@dhhs.nc.gov  

 Phone: 919-330-6434 
________________________________________ 
 
11.  Effective date: The terms of this agreement will become effective on the date that this 
agreement has been signed by both parties.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each executed this Memorandum of Agreement, this 
the __ day of _______, 2024. 
 
 
_________________________     _________________________ 
            
Luke Hoff, Director          Chief Michael West 
Division of Property & Construction     Goldsboro Police Department 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
 (Date)                (Date) 
 
 
 



I





J



U

U

cd

Q

L

U

U

O

U03
72

O

O

U

0

41

Cd

bi) 

z

Ucl

C

3 rn

u

M

O

U

00O

o

N

U

o

C%

j

U

ON

Q  

N

Q   

W

U

O  

CIA

a '

n

O

W

V1

W

O

W

U

H

Z

x -

d

N

C/

0

3 

3 

3 •° 

zb

N

M

cq

U

p

U

U

cd

Q

L

U



























































































































































City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

August 2024 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item K

- Report not Provided

- Report not Provided



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
July 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  August 9, 2024 
 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) does not meet during summer months (June-August). The 24-25 GYC 

session will resume with a Parent/Member Orientation on Sept. 4th.  Staff attended the annual Advisor’s Retreat, 
hosted by the City of Fayetteville on Aug. 21st- 22nd.  

• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Aug. 13th. 
The Executive Board (Chair & Vice Chair) met on Wed., Aug. 7th. Members of CCRD & Liaison attended a Human 
Relations Commission workshop, facilitated by the State of NC’s Human Relations Commission Program Manager 
(Gene Troy) and hosted by the City of Wilson’s Human Relations Department on Aug. 21st.  

• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) did not have a quorum for its regular monthly meeting 
scheduled for Aug. 15th. 
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff attended Wayne County Reentry Council meeting on Aug. 7th.  
2. Staff attended a Public Safety meeting with other City departments and Management on Aug. 13th.  
3. Staff attended a HACG Ribbon Cutting ceremony for Fairview Homes Renovation on Aug. 15th. 
4. Staff volunteered at Worrell’s Contracting Back to School bash on Aug. 16th.  
5. Staff attended the annual Overdose Awareness Event of CALM on Aug. 27th. 
6. Staff attended the City’s Employee Compensation Sessions on Aug. 28th & 29th.  
7. Staff attended the Wages Senior Companion Advisory Council meeting on Aug. 29th.   
8. CR&D held 6 staff meetings for the month of August.  
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended an Underwriting/Subsidy Layering Pre-Bid meeting on Aug. 1st.    
2. Staff engaged in 3 HUD Consultations in the month of August.  

 
• The Department received zero (0) complaints and thirty (30) requests for assistance for the month of August. *Please 

refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2024 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 2 0 1 2 1 2 1 0     1 
Other Requests 18 17 16 22 22 19 18 30     20 

 
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 1 0 2 1 
Other Requests 27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20 20 15 17 22 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
August 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared: September 6, 2024 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
         

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

None to Report None to Report 
 
Assistance with Resources 
  

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 16 Application provided /Application follow-up provided 
Homelessness Assistance 4 Referred to local Homeless Veterans Social Worker/ Provided update 

on Coordinated Entry process / Offered Coordinated Entry intake 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

3 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Historic Home 
Restoration 

1 Referred to Planning 

Yard Damage 1 Consulted Public Works & Engineering 
Police Assistance 1 Referred to GPD 
Utility Assistance 1 Referred to DSS 
Section 8 Inquiry 1 Did not wish to be referred to HACG 
Food Assistance 1 Provided Community Resource Listing 
Rental Property 1 Provided Community Resource Listing 
Total Requests: 30  

 



 

 
1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
August 2024 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  09-05-24 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 
 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and is 85% complete; 
• Phase III is under construction. Currently laying 24” force main down Carver Blvd. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections will be scheduled by the City’s new Construction 

Inspector after completion of the SCM Inspection and Certification Class being held in November. 
 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 

Stormwater Inventory Project 
• Final deliverables are under review by staff. 

 
2” Galvanized Water Line Project 

• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Plans and specifications are being reviewed by DWI. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating with Duke’s Root Control for the information required by EPA for lead and 
copper inventories; 

• This project is 95% complete. 
 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• The Wooten Company has completed the SCADA integration and electrical design; 
• Staff is working on contract documents. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• On August 5, 2024, staff recommended and City Council approved the selection of GS-NC P.C., an 
affiliate of Gresham Smith, to provide design, engineering, and permitting services for the Big Ditch 
Stream Restoration and Infrastructure Improvements Project. 

 
WRF Plant Expansion 

• Staff is working with Crowder Construction/Hazen and Sawyer on finalizing contracts for the WRF 
Expansion Project. 

 
I & I Reduction Project 

• Staff is working on plans and specifications. 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
AUGUST 2024 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: September 6, 2024 
 

 
 

FY 23-24
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues July-23 Adjusted Budget July-24 Collected
General Fund 1,782,952$      56,512,796$        2,019,931$      3.57%
Utility Fund 1,993,431        27,634,288          1,990,822        7.20%
Downtown District Fund 346                  100,225               1,292               1.29%
Occupancy Tax Fund 90,771             1,532,261            85,921             5.61%
Stormwater Fund 131,619           2,049,114            140,226           6.84%
     Total 3,999,119$      87,828,684$        4,238,191$      4.83%

Expenditures
General Fund 4,718,670$      56,512,796$        4,074,276$      7.21%
Utility Fund 1,390,204        27,634,288 2,026,804 7.33%
Downtown District Fund 111                  100,225 492                  0.49%
Occupancy Tax Fund 29,168             1,532,261 15,285 1.00%
Stormwater Fund 499,752           2,049,114 182,582 8.91%
     Total 6,637,905$      87,828,684$        6,299,440$      7.17%

FY 23-24
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

July-23 Adjusted Budget July-24 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 311,566$         23,444,329$        344,024$         1.47%
Charges for Services 2,580,682        31,737,533          2,533,746        7.98%
Revenue Other Agencies (29,511)            17,142,404          (22,058)            -0.13%
Other Revenues 213,779           5,240,230            347,697           6.64%
Fund Balance -                   6,125,063            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 922,604           4,139,125            1,034,781        25.00%
     Total 3,999,119$      87,828,684$        4,238,191$      4.83%

Expenditures
Labor 2,240,879$      41,667,067$        2,326,994$      5.58%
Non-Labor 4,397,027        46,161,617          3,972,446        8.61%
     Total 6,637,905$      87,828,684$        6,299,440$      7.17%

FY 23-24 Actual Total 
Collections Actual July-24 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 43,317$           1,425$                  1,425$             
Surplus 305$                -$                      -$                 

FY 24-25

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 24-25

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 9/4/24 12:19 PM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 9/9/24 1:19 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 8/31/2024 7/31/2024 8/31/2023 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 1,876,671.46$              2,369,382.79$              2,379,688.55$              0.00%
PNC - Money Market 22,771,396.23$           25,686,684.49$           4,117,965.02$              4.33%
PNC - Debit Account 1,741.82$                      2,000.00$                      2,000.00$                      0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 634,962.19$                 634,226.86$                 626,326.84$                 1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 -$                                43,201.01$                   n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 -$                                9,223,770.43$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,825,435.06$              4,804,131.65$              4,579,049.76$              n/a
Truist MMA 27,684,211.22$           27,608,112.17$           25,071,717.04$           3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,562.78$              2,380,542.62$              2,380,324.54$              0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 343,588.12$                 343,514.95$                 340,638.19$                 0.25%
Totals 60,518,568.88$          63,828,595.53$          48,764,681.38$          

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
August 31, 2024

Cash & Investment FY2025.xlsx 8‐31‐24 9/9/2024 1:20 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers ‐ July, 2024 through June, 2025

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Community Relations Felecia Williams Salaries & Wages Regular ‐$                               (1,800)$                             

Community Relations Felecia Williams Travel 1,800$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ Community Relations 1,800$                          (1,800)$                             

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular ‐$                               ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ PW Solid Waste ‐$                               ‐$                                   

Engineering Jonathan Perry Salaries & Wages Regular 6,530$                           ‐$                                   

Engineering Jonathan Perry Consultant Fees ‐$                               (6,530)$                             

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ Engineering 6,530$                          (6,530)$                             

Police Mike West Software License Fees ‐$                               (3,600)$                             

Police Mike West Contract Services 3,600$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ Police 3,600$                          (3,600)$                             

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies ‐$                               (8,500)$                             

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Sidewalk Repairs ‐$                               (5,000)$                             

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Utility Vehicle 13,500$                        ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ Stormwater 13,500$                        (13,500)$                           

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance ‐$                               (20,000)$                           

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Tractor 20,000$                        ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ Distribution & Collections 20,000$                        (20,000)$                           

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance ‐$                               (2,376)$                             

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Miscellaneous Equipment 50$                                ‐$                                   

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Worker's Compensation 2,000$                           ‐$                                   

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Spectrophotometer 326$                              ‐$                                   

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Pump Stations Maintenance ‐$                               (22,289)$                           

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman PU Pump Stations Maint (Cap Out) 22,289$                        ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ Aug 2024 ‐ Water Reclamation 24,665$                        (24,665)$                           

Transfers ‐ ALL FUNDS ‐ Aug 2024 70,095$                        (70,095)$                           

Transfers ‐ ALL FUNDS ‐ Jul 2024‐Jun 2025 108,161$                      (108,161)$                         

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY25_2.xlsx Transfers Aug 9/9/2024 1:52 PM



Red Font‐Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report ‐ Aug 2024

Granting Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description Source (Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 

Budget Amount   Budget Total  x

 Current Amount 

Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  

Project to Date  x2

 Current Amount 

Spent  

 Amount Spent to 

Project to Date 

x

3

 Positive 

(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                150,000$                ‐$                        117,975$                ‐$                        117,975$                ‐$                       
HUD CDBG FY16‐17 Entitlement Federal F 976$                       976$                       ‐$                        976$                       ‐$                        976$                       ‐$                       
HUD CDBG FY17‐18 Entitlement Federal F 3,626$                    3,626$                    ‐$                        3,626$                    ‐$                        3,626$                    ‐$                       
HUD CDBG FY18‐19 Entitlement Federal F 19,705$                  19,705$                  ‐$                        19,705$                  ‐$                        19,705$                  (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY19‐20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 328,479$                353,346$                ‐$                        219,747$                ‐$                        219,747$                (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY20‐21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,137$                351,643$                ‐$                        187,453$                4,550$                    195,508$                (8,055)$                  
HUD CDBG FY21‐22 Entitlement Federal F 354,122$                354,302$                ‐$                        87,559$                  ‐$                        87,559$                  (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY22‐23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$                359,449$                ‐$                        25,150$                  ‐$                        25,150$                  ‐$                       
HUD CDBG FY23‐24 Entitlement Federal F 361,561$                362,029$                ‐$                        26,347$                  ‐$                        25,371$                  976$                      
NCHFA NCHFA URP‐19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                100,000$                ‐$                        96,570$                  ‐$                        96,570$                  ‐$                       
HUD CDBG FY20‐21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                427,303$                ‐$                        134,188$                167$                       134,473$                (285)$                     
HUD HOME FY16‐17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                  22,201$                  ‐$                        22,201$                  ‐$                        22,201$                  ‐$                       
HUD HOME FY17‐18 Entitlement Federal F 77,995$                  77,995$                  ‐$                        77,480$                  ‐$                        87,995$                  (10,515)$                
HUD HOME FY18‐19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                  22,910$                  ‐$                        22,910$                  ‐$                        22,910$                  ‐$                       
HUD HOME FY19‐20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                214,732$                ‐$                        53,683$                  ‐$                        53,683$                  ‐$                       
HUD HOME FY20‐21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 237,076$                245,548$                ‐$                        59,252$                  2,716$                    64,677$                  (5,425)$                  
HUD HOME FY21‐22 Entitlement Federal F 250,738$                252,710$                ‐$                        59,002$                  ‐$                        59,002$                  (0)$                         
HUD HOME FY22‐23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$                287,303$                ‐$                        27,467$                  ‐$                        27,467$                  ‐$                       
HUD HOME FY23‐24 Entitlement Federal F 293,636$                293,636$                ‐$                        39,248$                  ‐$                        39,248$                  ‐$                       
HUD HOME ARP Funding (M21‐MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                907,913$                ‐$                        43,758$                  ‐$                        43,758$                  ‐$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 17,500$                  26,155$                  ‐$                        26,961$                  769$                       1,746$                    25,215$                 
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 ‐$                        2,043,052$            ‐$                        1,151,600$            ‐$                        1,151,600$            ‐$                       
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet ‐$                        11,150,000$          ‐$                        376,000$                ‐$                        376,000$                ‐$                       

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing ‐$                        80,000$                  ‐$                        32,691$                  ‐$                        ‐$                        32,691$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19‐FY24 Private P Ongoing 56,893$                  632,943$                ‐$                        567,943$                ‐$                        251,072$                316,871$               
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing ‐$                        59,615$                  ‐$                        59,695$                  ‐$                        48,010$                  11,685$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing ‐$                        18,252$                  ‐$                        34,181$                  ‐$                        33,091$                  1,090$                   
NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc‐OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 2,150,000$            2,152,338$            ‐$                        2,170,108$            153$                       89,179$                  2,080,929$           

DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 180,716$                180,716$                ‐$                        182,056$                13,058$                  160,697$                21,359$                 
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2023 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/26/2023 47,702$                  47,702$                  ‐$                        1,350$                    ‐$                        1,350$                    ‐$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing ‐$                        69,919$                  100$                       70,169$                  ‐$                        22,524$                  47,645$                 
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 5,100,000$            7,189,383$            ‐$                        7,385,809$            ‐$                        6,527,315$            858,494$               
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA‐D‐VUR‐0004 & AIA‐W‐VUR‐000State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                304,500$                ‐$                        302,300$                ‐$                        302,300$                ‐$                       
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF‐M‐VUR‐0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                101,500$                ‐$                        1,500$                    ‐$                        103,920$                (102,420)$             

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing ‐$                        1,861,258$            ‐$                        1,861,258$            23,362$                  1,590,094$            271,164$               
NC Dept Public Safety Big Ditch Stream Restoration S 2,000,000$            2,000,000$            ‐$                        2,000,000$            ‐$                        ‐$                        2,000,000$           

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF‐Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Insta Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                  265,513$                ‐$                        233,113$                ‐$                        265,513$                (32,400)$                
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF‐2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$            6,029,395$            ‐$                        30,000$                  300$                       25,300$                  4,700$                   
City Fees None Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) (EPA) Private C 10/2/2003 ‐$                        2,037,500$            ‐$                        2,037,500$            89,535$                  1,586,315$            451,185$               
Total 20,747,584$          41,057,066$          100$                       19,848,530$          134,610$                13,883,626$          5,964,904$           

Prepared: TLW

Reviewed: CFG 9/9/2024 1:34 PM

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2024‐08 Aug_1.xlsx Grants 2024‐08 Aug 9/9/2024 1:34 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
August 2024 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: September 5, 2024  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 87% of the time. 13% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:08.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred for 97% of all calls.   
 

  33% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days. 
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 3 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Sprinkler Fun Days on Center Street and at Mina Weil Park, Center Street Jam, Back to School Bash, 
Smoke Alarm Installs, Station Tours, and Truck Displays. We reached 36 Adults and 51 Children with fire 
prevention materials.  

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2024 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 412 365 427 420 425 417 466 465     425 3397 

Structure Fires: 4 6 5 0 1 2 1 4     3 23 

EMS Calls: 236 202 249 243 217 224 264 240     234 1869 

Vehicle Accidents: 27 33 49 40 46 38 41 57     41 331 

Fire Alarms: 50 44 49 58 66 47 65 75     57 454 

Other: 95 80 75 79 95 106 95 89     91 726 

Training Hours: 3307 3887 2958 2815 2239 2125 2029 1940     2663 21300 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 6 1 2 2 1 1 1     2 15 

Inspections: 131 150 169 157 150 128 151 155     149 1191 

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376 420 409 475 334 4014 
Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7  4 8 4 5 55 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192 215 205 270 157 1889 
Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42 45 41 37 35 425 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61 68 54 73 50 599 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74 92 101 91 82 982 
Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593 1688 1507 1003 2025 24301 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 4 4 0 0 4 0 0 3 25 
Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156 93 167 133 126 1384 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
August 
Date Prepared:  September 6, 2024 
 
 
Human Resources  

• 2024 Pay & Compensation Study Meetings and Information Uploads 
• Attended Work Session on 08/05/2024 for Pay Study presentation to City Council. 
• Attended the Pierce Insurance Renewal Meeting on 08/06/2024. Planning to switch Life Insurance 

from MetLife to Lincoln because of 9% premium increase presented by MetLife.  All other 
supplemental benefits will remain the same.   

• Meeting with MAG regarding Compensation and Classification Study 
• Meeting with Management regarding Organization and Management Structure Study   
• HR Best practices & goals submitted to Interim Assistant Manager 
• Interview for WIAO administrative support student intern for Human Resources 
• Communicating with WIAO contact to obtain additional Student Interns for City of Goldsboro 
• UWWC 2025 Campaign Meeting on 08/14/2024 
• 2025 Benefit Booklet Edit Meeting with Pierce Insurance 
• Pilot testing and roll out of Single Sign-On Integration 
• Updated Salary Schedule 
• Updated Personnel Policy Manual 
• Human Relation Issues 
• Attended PSHRA NC Conference Planning Committee Meeting on 08/23/2024 held virtually. 
• Completed New Hire Orientation 08/28/2024 
• Preparing data for Benchmarking Project 2.0 for School of Government 
• Preparing for NC State Health Plan (Aetna) 2025 Open Enrollment 
• Preparing for Supplemental Plan (Pierce) 2025 Open Enrollment 
• Preparing to re-design Recruitment and Retention process 
• Preparing for Wellness Walk Initiative “Walk the City” 
• Preparing for ARC Blood Drives in September 
• Preparing for Employee Appreciation event on 12/17/2024 
• Preparing for City vs. County blood drive January 2025 
• Peparing for Flu vaccine clinic 
• Preparing for Annual Hearing Booth Calibration 

 
Safety   

• August City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• DGDC Board Meeting Reference Safety Downtown 
• Conference Call with UTA CONCERNING SAFETY OF THE BAND WHILE DOING CONCERT. 
• Investigated Police vehicle accident on Berkeley Blvd. 
• Assisted with Dog bite with a solid waste employee 
• Assisted Industrial nurse on new hire drug testing. 
• Close 2 liability cases with Travelers insurance. 
• Scheduled OSHA Consultation visits for September 3 and 5. 
• Meeting with Jeff Mozingo concerning the field used for Freedom Festival. 
• Work Zone Safety class at Public Works. 



2 

• Went over the Emergency Operation plan for the Freedom Festival with Chief Stempien. 
• Finalized paperwork for totaled F-150 vehicle in solid waste fleet. 
• Taught Confined Spaces training at water facility. 
• Elevator inspections with Southern Elevator. 
• Assisted in new hire orientation 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 
• Daily office duties 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 115 visits this month.  

 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• Vital signs=13 
• 3 Hearing Screens completed -new hires 
• Heat Related Illnesses presentations: Heat Related Illnesses presentation Parks/Rec Maint. 8/1 
• Random, Promotion, Post and New Hire Drug screens  
• Random Breath Alcohol test  
• Fit Test at WRF 8/6 
• BBP training 31 employees 

 
Meetings: 

• Wellness Committee meeting 8/20 @ City Hall 
• New Hire Orientation- BBP training, FMLA, EAP, and Workplace Injuries training at GEC 8/28  
• Attended “CALM” Coalition for Addiction and Life Management- Overdose Awareness event @ the 

HUB 8/27 
 
Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  

• 7 reported COVID positive case  
• 3 WC injuries 
• August Nurse Newsletter: “No White Diet”  
• 3 employees began FMLA and 1 ended FMLA  
• Weekly Wellness Walks with employees around Center Street 

 
  

DRUG SCREENS = 13 TOTAL                                                   Breath Alcohol Test = 0 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  1 
New Hire non- CDL:  2 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 2 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  7  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  1 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

432 422 422 429 432 425 427 439     427 

Employees –            
Part Time 

106 109 112 114 134 
 

145 
 

145 147     124 

Total Employees 538 531 534 543 566 570 572 586     551 
Male  413 407 408 413 422 422 423 431     415 
Female 125 124 126 130 144 148 149 155     135 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

339 319 319 326 334 334 335 345     329 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

182 181 184 186 196 199 201 203     190 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

17 18 18 18 21 21 20 22     19 
 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5     4 
Ethnicity – Other 8 9 9 9 11 11 11 11      10 
Vacancies  32 32 31 33 31 33 34 29      32 
Applications 240 289 303 502 381 481 466 290     380 

Applicant Notices 97 216 179 168 352 471 355 536     263 
New Hires  1 2 1 2 12 1 5 11     3 
Promotions 1 5 1 1 1 3 1 4     2 
Resignations 5 5 2 7 5 1 4 2     4 
Retirements  3 0 0 0 1 2 0 1     1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 2 1 1 0 0 2 0      1 

Turnover Rate  2.3% 1.7% .01% 1.9% 1.4% .005% .005% .01%     1.0% 
Vehicle Accidents 2 2 1 1 0 5 2 3     2 

Workers’ Comp 2 4 1 1 3 4 2 3       2 
Covid Related 9 2 1 0 0 0 1 7       2 

Telework 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14     14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432 425 423 420 425 438 428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125 126 123 121 121 108 110 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557 551 546 541 546 546 538 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419 422 421 416 411 415 420 412 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135 130 130 130 131 126 126 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332 340 337 
 

328 331 332 327 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188 193 182 180 183 185 185 182 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20 18 18 18 18 17 18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37 38 38 38 32 29 26 37 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363 538 339 311 217 135 286 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185 341 95 426 218 32 168 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4 12 3 7 1 7 18 7 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3 7 2 2 6 0 3 
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6 8 7 1 2 2 5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 
 

2 1 1 1 0  1 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.4% 2.4% .05% .01% .01% 1.3% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3 2 0 6 5 5 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8 2 4 2 2 0 3 
Covid Related 13 3 3 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 2 1   3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 
 

 

Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
August 2024 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: September 9, 2024 
 
 

• Replaced WRAL Camera on Paramount. 
• Resolved MDT Connection issues. 
• Updated Garage software. 
• Updated camera access for PD staff. 
• Provided IT support for DGDC event. 
• Migrated Adobe users to new licensing model. 
• Staff attended NCLGISA planning meeting. 
• Installed new chiller and removed rental unit. 
• Conducted interviews for the Programmer Analyst and Cybersecurity Network Engineer. 
• Setup JOC for Public Safety. 
• Verified functionality of the GPD Command Center. 
• Updated loaner laptops in case they were needed. 
• Tested UPS units at City Facilities to verify operation. 
• Replaced two network switches (one core switch and one access level switch). 
• Resolved issues related to failed equipment. 
• Resolved phone issues related to failed equipment. 
• Drone flights for GPD. 
• Completed NeoGov SSO setup and testing. 
• Resolved CoDa text and call list issues. 
• Replaced barcode reader at GMGC. 
• Resolved Cityworks mapping issue. 
• Replaced access control circuit board at the WTP. 
• Setup monitoring on equipment at Compost. 
• Reset cameras at the River Intake. 
• Cleared the JOC and stored equipment. 
• Resolved staff Wi-Fi issue. 
• Resolved issues with mass calling audio files. 
• Resolved issue with mail archiver. 
• Updated server certificates. 
• Resolved connectivity issue at Compost Plant. 
• Replaced damaged connection in Support Service at GPD. 
• Coordinate service with PSG & CMS for Public Safety Fan issues. 
• Updated Strategic Plan links. 
• Replaced bad circuit board for Access Control at WTP. 
• Replaced bad circuit board for Access Control at City Hall Addition. 
• Generated RTA Reports for Public Works. 
• Promoted a staff member to the Cybersecurity Network Engineer position. 
• Made an offer to someone for the Programmer Analyst position. 
• Updated GIS to resolve Cityworks mapping issues. 



 

• Updated WTP cameras and presets. 
• Replaced UPS in maintenance building at WRF. 
• Created RTA Reports for Public Works. 
• Resolved PXE boot issues. 
• Updated SPEDE for GPD. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

801 817 708 965 592 499 633 651     708 5666 

Tickets 
Closed 

819 838 714 963 580 523 602 686     716 5725 

Open  
Tickets 

329 412 306 351 359 359 325 223     333  

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694 847 676 585 728 8,731 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693 769 696 576 731 8,770 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280 358 338 347 332  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
August 2024 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 09/03/24 
 
The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for August totaled $7,917,201. New 
Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: Demolition permits issued to 
Goldsboro Housing Authority for Hollowell and Oak Street Apts. at $424,800 and 8 new single-family dwellings at 
$1.5M. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $3,389,723. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $31,594.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,853 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $4,530. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,980. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 834 inspections for the month.  During the month of August, two (2) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 315 permits were issued for the month.    Fifty-four (54) plan reviews were 
completed for August. 
 
 
 

 

2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $21.3 $7.5 $5.7 $17.5 $10.3 $12.9 $11.9 $7.9 $11.8
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $11.4 $3.8 $2.5 $11.7 $7.7 $9.7 $5.7 $3.4 $7.2
New Residential $ (M) $3.0 $898K $624K $870K $1.1 $2.3 $1.9 $1.5 $1.5
Misc $ (M) $10.0 $3.6 $3.2 $5.8 $2.6 $3.2 $6.1 $4.5 $4.8
Permit Fee $ (K) $53 $65 $38 $43 $48 $36 $63 $32 $47
Inspections 798 741 918 738 735 740 875 834 797
Permits Issued 361 295 301 383 337 319 781 315 387
Plan Reviews 68 68 45 24 45 64 90 54 57

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $59.7 $11.8 $19.5 $20.3 $27.6 $23.2
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $48.6 $7.7 $16.1 $14.4 $15.7 $16.4
New Residential $ (M) $1.5 $652K $2.8 $2.6 $4.1 $2.9 $4.3 $3.5 $1.4 $3.5 $2.8 $85K $2.5
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $11.2 $4.2 $3.4 $5.9 $11.8 $6.7
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $81 $53 $98 $49 $74 $56
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 747 827 887 780 676 693
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 463 366 364 354 316 364
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 74 107 110 66 77 70



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
August 2024 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 9/10/2024 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• August activity included 5 rental/use days, including 2 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

• Ray Bunch Concert – Foundation Event 
• United Way Training 
• Distinguished Young Women of Lenoir County 
• Well CDC – Community Stage Production 

o Stripping, Painting, Inspections, and Maintenance During Traditionally Slow Weeks. 
 

• July cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 7 days, 4 public performances. 
• Repairs, Maintenance, Issues:  

o Maintenance, Inspections, Licensing, and Service complete and up to date. 
o Minor HVAC and Roofing concerns resolved satisfactorily. 
o Wheelchair lift replacement requested in 2025 budget, not yet approved. 
o HVAC controls upgrade requested in 2025 budget, not yet approved. 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $40,311:   Labor: $23,025 / Operations: $13,036 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $4250 
  

Revenues: $4,162:  Tickets: $1173 / Building Rentals: $2834/ Concession: $155  
   
      

  

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 FY 25 Total Average

Exp $26,909 $40,311 $67,220 $33,610

Rev $1,331 $4,162 $5,493 $2,747

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $64,018 $37,664 $62,732 $102,055 $124,902 $48,590 $77,450 $151,532 $62,388 $64,071 $145,359 $965,926 $80,494

Rev $15,366 $13,492 $19,419 $31,322 $67,792 $98,965 $43,947 $71,743 $52,220 $53,068 $38,650 $136,803 $642,787 $53,566



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
August Monthly Report  
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 9/6/2024 

• Peacock Pool had 1,287 visitors in August 
 

• Tuesday Sensory Swim was extended through August at Peacock Pool 
 

• Youth Sports Camps and Summer Day Camps continued concluded this month 
 

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted seventeen (17) events – 1445 guests and eight (8) City of 
Goldsboro events – 410 guests  
 

• GEC had to turn away 11 events due to date wanted already being booked 
 

•  2,100 rounds of Golf this month  
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted Sunrise Kiwanis and Deuces tournaments this month - 122 golfers 
 

• Back to School Pool Party with Specialized Recreation held on August 15th – 27 participants 
 

• Bingo with Specialized Recreation held on August 28th – 48 participants 
 

• Neighborhood Watch Meeting held in the Recreation Room at T.C Coley Community Center on August 7th     
 

• Senior Card Group Play at T.C. Coley Community Center – 106 participants 
 

• Line Dancing is held on Mondays and Thursdays at T.C. Coley Community Center – 188 participants 
 

• Splash Pad at our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex continues to get a lot of use 
 

• Senior Cornhole resumed meeting at WA Foster Center Gym in August – 23 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 195 visitors  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during August –465 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff. 

 



 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG 
S
E
P 

OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                         
Rental Revenue $6,484 $26,818  $10,194 $15,938  $19,325 $13,629 $9,052

  $15447         $14,611 

Facility Usage 1488 1788  2,072  1850  2210  2412 1384  1885         1886 
Expenditures $14,632 $34,260  $19,026  $12,484  $18,058 $13,457 $8,469 $12770         $16,645 
                            

WA Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $710 $380  $570  $490  $430 $7,725 $3,775 $1,535          $1,952 
Rental Revenue $425 $1,050  $1,190  $1,475  $3,462 $1,763 $1,900 $3,060         $1,791 
Facility Usage 3368 2166  2305  2383  2708 2159  2528 802         2302 
Expenditures $14,075 $14,460  $14,225  $14,470  $14,980 $22,610  30,791 $28,361         $19,247 
T.C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $1,742 $1,271  $787  $433   $586 $130 $515  $360         $728 
Rental Revenue $570 $1,150  $835  $530  $490 $550 $590  $480          $649 
Facility Usage 343 750  537  542  407 394 451  547          496 
Expenditures $5,662 $5,866  $5,780  $5,905 $5,205 $5,540 $5,755 $5,970          $5,710 
                            

Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0  $0 $0   $0  $0         $0 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0  $0 $0  $0  $0         $0 
Facility Usage 168 144  126  138  527 155   147 197         200 
Expenditures $2,364 $2,952 $3,298  $3,116  $5,160 $4,482 $2,184 $826         $3,048 
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $125  $0  $50 $8,491 $7,787 $3,070         $2,440 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0  $0 $0 $525 $525  $0          $131 
Facility Usage 113 170  211  142  289 3967 2993  1324          1151 
Expenditures $2,475 $2,594 $3,685  $3,980  $4,140 $15,135 20,996 $10743         $7,969 
                            

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $14,100 $15,090  $19,807  $60  $6,500 $4,760 $8,225 $20890          $11,179 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $1,325  $0  $375 $600  $0   $0         $288 
Facility Usage 36,489 37,080  37,195  39,417  41,484 44,287  49,860 51309          42,140 
Expenditures $16,198 $16,363  $16,420  $16,865 $17,676 $37,716 15,703 $16067         $19,126 
                            

Golf Course                         
Revenues $36,586 $53,758  $62,463  $80,212  $81,257 $86,468 67,129 $72447          $67,540 
Expenditures $48,038 $52,214  $52,886  $47,582  $78,744 $63,177  40,986 $54,790          $54,802 
Rounds of Golf 938 1487  1493  2,675  2343  2345 2127   2100         1939 
Net -$11,452 $1,544  $9,577  $32,629   $2,512 $23,291 26,143 19,657         $12,988 
                            

Special Events                         
Revenues / 
Sponsorships 

$0 $2,430  $0  $0  $1,650  $0 $0  $0          $510 

Participation 0 454  1606   1094  110  0 0  0         408 
Expenditures $0 $4,080  $536  $760  $1,700  $0 $0   $0         $885 
                            

TOTAL 
REVENUE 

$60,617 $101,947  $97,296  $99,138  $109,798 $124,641  $99,498 $117289         $101,278 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES 

$103,444 $132,789 $115,856  105,162  $145,663 $162,117 124,884 129527          $127,430 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $810,224          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,019,442           

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          

Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152 $30,435 $9,465 $9,609  $13,162
  $18,076  $16,274 

Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016 2536  1921  1315  1400   1985 1971 

Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527  $9,749 $14,049  $22,354
  $65,822  $23,045 $16,953 

                            

W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825 $230 $1,210  $1,180  $630 $520 $2,461 

Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195 $603  $1,085 $1,695  $1,013  $238 $1,212 

Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077 1942 2013  2935  2650 1834 2243 

Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668 $17,541 $10,287 $10,179 $10,033 $9,940  $13,053 

                            

T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211 $237 $200  $164 $117  $220  $334 

Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015 $80 $490 $710 $550  $450  $689 

Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177 197   175 314  218  199 190 

Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706 $9,164  $6,005  $6,258 $5,127 $6,166  $5,827 

                            

Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36   $18 $0  $0 $0 $124 $0  $15 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166 184   134 373 126   94 147 

Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627  $5,612  $4,477  $5,627  $2,856 $4,180  $6,643 

Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749  $3,408 $930 $0 $455  $595  $1,546 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875  $700 $774 $0 $0 $0 $229 

Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720  2025  175 164  158 142  742 

Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611  $15,760  $5,088 $1,245 $3,103  $3,057 $7,777 

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45 $25,540  $1,605  $5,000 $9,920  $4,520  $9,729 

Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0  $1,950  $450 $350 $0 $300 $848 

Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380   15290 20025  25168 31089 32789  23150 

Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678  $14,900 $12,629 $64,318 $18,436
  $14,576  $17,662 

                            

Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821  $63,590 $57,788  $52,418
  

$41,483
  $38,898  $51,776 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528 $83,528  $46,397 $56,788 $315,95
3  $67,229 $75,265 

Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110  2076  2153   1825 1227   1079 1868 

Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293  -$19,938  $11,391  -$4,370 $274,470 $28,331  -$23,489 

                            

Special Events                         
Revenues / 
Sponsorships 

$0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659  $0 $0  $285 $0  $0  $606 

Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101  0 0 42  55  7500 698 

Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551   $0 $0  $1,443 $2,151  $1,649  $1,141 

                            

TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565 $126,773 $73,997 $71,411 $67,454
  $63,817  $85,270 

TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105896 $156,254 $98,932 $168212 $423481  $129842  $144,385 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $1,023,235           

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,732,616           

 



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
August 2024 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  September 5, 2024  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for August 2023 was 241, compared to 223 for August 2024. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $445,862 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $96,036 was recovered and property damaged was $39,250. 
 
Officers arrested 100 people and issued 306 citations during the month. There were 18 drug-related 
charges.  
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 3 1 3 0 2     10  
Rape 3       0   0  1 1 1  2 1                  9  
Robbery 3 2    6  1 0 10  6 7     35  
Aggravated Assault 21 15 20 13 21 24 9 12     135  
Breaking & Entering 22 38  23  21 33  27  33  23          220  
Larceny 159 96     145    114 156  111  128  166      1075  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  6 13  8 14  14 5 10           80  
Arson 0 0 2  0  0  0  0 2       4  
TOTALS 219 157 209  161  226  190  183  223       1568  

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0  3  0  2 10  
Rape 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 8  
Robbery 2 1 4 1 5 4 2 6 4 4 6 9 48  
Aggravated Assault     15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22 22 28 17 246  
Breaking & Entering 22 16 12 18 29 24 30 28 27 25 39 30 300  
Larceny 112 88 110 114 160 148 135 162 131 153 137 142 1592  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10 10 16 12 9 9 23 22 16 16 16 13 172  
Arson 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 2 0 6  
TOTALS 161 134 170 165 226 202 213 241 202 224 230 214 2382  

 

Revenue collected for August 2024 included:    

       

 
Police Reports                                                                         
Parking Tickets   $ 

    732.05 
 1225.00  

 Fingerprints   $        50.00  

 Special Events                                                                                 $ 
            

900.00  
                          Total                $       2,907.05      
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
August 2024 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: September 6, 2024 
 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. Currently at 44% capacity. 
• Capital Projects: Replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. Replace flow meters at the WTP. 
• The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed and certified. 
• The intake structure screen at the Neuse River has damage to it and needs to be replaced. Staff are in the 

process of contracting with engineering service (Hazen and Sawyer for design, permitting, and putting this 
repair and dredging out for bid. 

• No issues during Hurricane Debby Event 
 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow for 

August is 13.31-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.87-MGD. This puts the WRF at 62% 
capacity. 

• All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
• Capital projects: Generator at Westbrook L/S.  
• Working with the Design Build Team of Crowder and Hazen for the WRF upgrade expansion. 
• WRF is fully staffed, and 3 positions are seeking certification. Certification testing in September. 
• No issues during Hurricane Debby event, but for the exception of High flows coming into the WRF (20-30 

million gallon per day for at least 7days. River levels reached 21.5 feet and maintaining 12+feet current 
the 19th though the end of the month. 

 

Compost Facility 
• Three hundred and twenty-five cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in July 2024. 
• 2 Compost operators with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 
• No issues during Hurricane Debby Event. 

 

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 
 

2024 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.95 5.88 5.84 5.97 6.05 7.19 6.09 5.99     6.12 
Sewer** 10.63 8.17 8.91 7.91 8.11 5.74 8.15 13.31     8.87 

Compost 161 866 970 1156 542 785 325 215     628 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04 6.10 5.96 5.69 6.00 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76 7.27 7.33 9.59 8.66 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226 1432 659 367 748 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
17.5 8.5 18.7 16.9 62.4 14.7 12.4 9.3 20.1
1.8 2.4 1.1 1.8 2.7 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.6
52 25 18 22 22 24 20 18 25.1
21 16 13 20 19 21 20 14 18.0
1 3 1 2 3 1 1 2 1.8
5 5 1 7 5 4 11 5 5.4

33 37 29 30 13 22 29 25 27.3
0 0 0 20 21 50 89 53.4 29.2
15 10 35 25 10 20 30 27 21.5

248 255 235 207 248 189 175 190 218.4

1.11 1.03 1.02 1.18 1.25 1.10 1.20 1.18 1.135
19 15 16 0 0 0 9 15 9.3
0.8 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.4 0.609

Cemetery Funerals 6 2 3 1 6 3 10 3 4.3

2 15 51 40 14 26 16 22 23.3
73 62 100 188 74 59 71 110 92.1

270.4 300 310 356.1 369.9 314.3 305.2 358.5 323.1
0.35 8.30 4.03 8.46 0.77 1.18 1.41 2.79 3.4
0.00 0.00 0.00 5.08 7.81 1.15 12.37 5.40 4.0
6 4 4 7 2 2 4 3 4.0

10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 19.2 23.1 7.4 16.6
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 1.1 1 1 2.7
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 29 36 24 24.7
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 13 17 18 16.0
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3 4 3 3.8
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 6 4 3 5.3

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 27 45 28 41.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 10 0 0 41.3
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 60 20 0 79.4

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 230 184 147 225.6
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       74$       53$       61$       76.1

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.07 1.00 1.10 1.1
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 0 29 40 28.9
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 5 0 6 3.3

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 5 4 0 14.1
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 153 92 195 100.8
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 300 254.6 208.4 198.7
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 4.1 1.43 0.4 1.7
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 15.56 25.16 0.00 11.3
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 3 3 3 2.5

Public Works Department
August 2024
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared:  13 September 2024

2023

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage Total Work Orders

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2024

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds: Lighting issues consumed a big part of Maintenances time this month, 2 
water heater issues and several other plumbing issues were resolved, along with various taskings from other 
departments.  Grounds continued with lot routes, ROWs, and Public Works Complex . Additionally the department 
assisted with several events to include the final Center Street Jam and Christmas Light prep.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 15 after hour calls--total of 26.75 hours. Completed 77 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 110 potholes and 22 utility cuts, 8 trees in roadway, 340 LF sidewalk, 155 LF C&G.  
2,700 LF of small ditches cleaned, Swept 358 curb miles, Jet Rod 3,960 LF storm pipe, cleaned 5 Manholes and 8 
Catch Basins, 16.5 Hours of Call Duty. Repaired 2 storm water cave ins.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
August 2024 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 09/04/2024 
 

• Total hotel revenue generated in July was $2,405,060 which is down -0.7% YOY. August 

revenue not yet released. 

• "50-things-to-do-in-wayne-county" was the top organic page with 757 page views. 

“downtown Goldsboro nc” increased 1 position and is now ranked #1. The average session 

duration increased 12% compared to the previous month. 

• Amanda attended the Wayne County Chamber’s Legislative Breakfast - 8/8 

• Call with NC LaxFest to discuss details for October Tournament -  8/15 

• NC Coast Host Virtual Meeting – 8/22 

•  Zoom call with potential AJGA Sponsor 

• Website planning call with 57 Marketing  

• Walk thru at the new office 

• Monthly GTC/TDA Meeting 

 

 

 

  
City Occupancy Tax Collections 

July Figures Have Not Been Released 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 96,122 $82,030 $83,980 $88,871 $64,393 $92,315 $69,845 $72,017 $78,978 $97,744 $89,288 $1,006,354 $83,863 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 

               

               

               

               
 
 



L



wi—
M

O

N03cl

O' 

p

sx

O

En

lop

N

b4Cd

Oczcn

tb

3

M

j (

4f)

O

N

U

N '

C

U

y >, 

O

p

i. 

Os. "" "  

Wit"" 
N  °   

U

Q"

S".   

O

V. 

U

O

N

p

Ocn
N

Q° 

x

W

to

I., 

a)

4. 

3

dQCn0

O

4

U  

bA

s0. 

A. 

Q

p

Q, 

O

2

GJ

cz

a ° .   • 

w     

d .    • 

o  

fes, 

U  

4cnO

Ocn

cn

0UQ) cn

d

og

go

Cl

66 0

r. 
r. 

3V

b

N

10k

A

Wom

Ud

aNr. 
r. 3V

b

N

dw

w3[ 

Wom



F









































G



08/28/2024
Yes

Completed
Completed
































